
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

Regular Board Meeting  

Wednesday, October 7, 2020

7:00 P.M. Regular Board Meeting 

Community Center 

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 

President – Bill Pease • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Ashley Porter

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

1



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
 Meeting Agenda for October 7, 2020 - Pg.1 

 

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday, October 7, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be closed 
to the public.  

To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE:  
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (877)778-1806 
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/ 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Oath of Office for Appointed Board Member.
4. Roll Call.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment.
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the
Directors.

C. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion.
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of September 16, 2020 Regular Board of Director’s meeting.
2. Approve DRAFT minutes of September 23, 2020 Special Board of Director’s meeting.
3. Approve DRAFT minutes of October 1, 2020 Special Board of Director’s meeting.
4. Approve Register of District Invoices.

D. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION
1. Mike Sheafer, Special District Risk Management Authority, Presentation of 2020 Earl F. Sayre

Excellence in Safety Award for the Property/Liability Program – Large Member Category

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

President – Bill Pease • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director Ashley Porter 

2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
 Meeting Agenda for October 7, 2020 - Pg.2 

2. Assembly Member Jim Frazier, District 11.
3. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report.
4. Sheriff’s Office Report.
5. CHP Report.
6. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report.

E. LIAISON REPORTS

F. PRESENTATIONS

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS
1. Discussion and Possible Action to Establish an Updated and Restated Employee Personnel Manual and

Approve Resolution No. 2020-21.

H. MANAGER’S REPORT
1. Landscape Update.

I. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

J. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS
1. Standing Committee Reports.

a. Finance Committee Meeting (Committee Member Bill Mayer and Ashley Porter)
October 7, 2020.

b. Internal Communications Committee Meeting (Committee Member Kevin Graves and Ashley 
Porter) October 7, 2020.

c. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Bill Pease and Bill Mayer) 
October 7, 2020.

2. Other Reportable Items.

K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED (Information Only)

L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

M. ADJOURNMENT
1. Adjourn to the next regular meeting of October 21, 2020 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community 

Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 

3



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.1 

 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday September 16, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be closed 
to the public.  
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  
 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE:  
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (877)778-1806  
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.- By President Pease 
2. Pledge of Allegiance- Led by Director Bill Mayer. 
3. Roll Call- All Present, Director Kevin Graves participated via Teleconference.  
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
Public comment regarding: 

• Recommended the Board do meetings via Zoom. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of regular meeting for September 2, 2020. 
2. Government Code Section 53065 5 Annual Report FY19-20. 
3. Capacity Fee Charge Report. 
4. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
Motion made by Vice President Bryon Gutow to approve items on the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Second by Director Bill Mayer.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
 

D. PRESENTATIONS 
None. 
 

E. MONTHLY WATER AND WASTEWATER REPORT – VEOLIA 
1. Veolia Report – Month of August 2020 
Presentation from Veolia Project Manager Gerry Lemus regarding monthly performance of water and 
wastewater plants was provided. Veolia Project Manager Gerry Lemus gave information regarding safety 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bill Pease • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

4

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.2 

 

and productivity, as well as continued compliance with State regulations. Update was provided regarding 
equipment performance in the UV system. Work continues on the valves in lift stations.  
Director Bill Mayer asked Veolia Project Manager Gerry Lemus to create a clearer graph since the one 
provided today was difficult to read and understand. 
Public comment regarding: 

• Recommended Board use Zoom for meetings. 

• Trouble being able to hear the presentation and wanted to have access to the documents being 
discussed. 

Rod Attebery, Legal Counsel for Town of Discovery Bay reminded the public that all documents discussed 
are available on the Agenda Packet accessible on the Town’s website. 
 

F. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Community Center Pool. 
General Manager Mike Davies spoke of the tasks issued by the Board regarding three options for the 
Community Center Pool.  
  Option 1- Eliminate the Pool 
   Demolition of the pool, eliminating all future operating cost associated with the pool. 
  Option 2- Proceed with Request for Proposal on New Pool Project 

To pay for the pool, it would require a combination of Hofmann money and an interest-bearing 
loan. Based on the estimates provided, Hofmann monies alone will not cover the total cost of 
the pool. 
Cost of New Pool:    $1,418,610 
15% Contingency:         212,800 
11% Construction Management & Inspection      156,000   
Terracon Construction Administration:         10,000 
Cost of Permits:            22,029 
Cost of RFP Development:            2,500 
Loan Interest       ?? 
 TOTAL:     $1,821,939 
 
Hofmann Money Available as of Dec 2020 $   978,002 
Hofmann Money Balance as of Dec 2020      393,827  ($433,209 if payments made to 
12/23) 
 TOTAL:     $1,371,829  ($1,411,212 if payments made to 12/23) 

 
Total estimated annual revenue from pool operation is:  $  40,750 
Total estimated annual operating and staffing costs are:  $130,567 
     Differential:  $(89,817) 

Director Bill Mayer asked for an explanation for an 11% fee for Construction Management & 
Inspection. 
General Manager Mike Davies advised the fee is for the overlooking of the project and managing 
the construction of the pool. 

  Option 3- Continue Refurbishing of Existing Pool 
 Cost to Refurbish Pool:  $175,875  
Paid to date:   $  92,230  
 TOTAL REMAINING   $  83,645 
 
Total estimated annual revenue from pool operations is:  $  26,180 
Total estimated annual operating and staffing costs are:  $100,566 
     Differential:  $(74,386) 

General Manager Mike Davies reminded the Board that we are currently still under contract with 
Adam’s Pool Solutions for refurbishing services of the existing pool. 
Director Bill Mayer asked if the 11% Construction Management & Inspection fee would apply to this 
option.  
General Manager Mike Davies states he believes this project can be managed inhouse, eliminating 
this fee. 

Public comment regarding: 

• Provided a timeline of past pool discussions and advised it is time for the Board to come to a 
decision. 

• Shortage in funds even if all Hofmann funds are used. Inability to pay. 

• Not undertaking an expense of this size at this time. Prefers refurbishment of current pool. Cost is 
too high for the amount of people that would benefit from it. 

5



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.3 

 

• Amount that has already been spent on current pool. Hofmann funds are enough to refurbish pool 
and still provide funds for other improvements. 

• Filters and pumps will need to be replaced if there is a refurbishment. 

• Additional options to bring in revenue from the pool. Spoke about health advantages of having a 
pool. 

• Clarification that refurbishment of pool will eliminate income from River Otters. 

• Growing community and larger pool will offer more versatility. 

• What is the capacity limit for both pool sizes? Community is growing and small pool cannot 
accommodate Town of Discovery Bay growth. 

• Using the pool to bring in people and their business.  

• Larger pool has more potential. Maintaining doesn’t give the community the opportunity to grow. 

• River Otters cannot go back to a three lane pool. It is too small. Invest in something that will last 
much longer.  

• Look at the future of TODB. Review the cost aspects of what we have now and where we will be in 
the future. 

• Pool will never be a profit center for any community. Pools costs too much to maintain. Difference 
in cost between refurbishing and a new pool is too large. 

• It’s not just about the pool, it is also about local businesses. TODB is a dead end. 

• Possibility of an emergency and funds not available to help since funds were used on the pool. 

• Positive events for children to be involved in swimming. 

• Enticement to live in TODB is no longer an interest. Surrounding communities are more attractive. 

• Lack of activities in TODB. Condition of the water in the Delta. 

• Renting a larger pool will not increase the revenue it will bring in.  

• It’s time the community has a place for public to go. Not many things to do in TODB. There has 
been increase in size of the Town which the pool cannot accommodate. 

• Cost of chemicals and maintenance. Not making a good return in investments. Pool is too shallow 
for water polo. Still need to consider parking and lighting costs. There will be lack of parking and increase 
of garbage thrown around. 

• Has made a lot of friends in the River Otters and wants to see the next generation enjoy it the way 
he did. 

Director Bill Mayer addressed concerns about Hofmann money and current funds set in CIP for the pool 
project. Does not want to make a decision based on opinions and estimates. Would like to negotiate 
costs and possibly go out to RFP to hopefully reduce the cost of a larger pool. Reminded of 
improvements that have already been done. 
Director Bill Mayer made motion to proceed with RFP to look for bids to get actual dollar figure for larger 
pool instead of an estimate. 
President Bill Pease second. 
Director Kevin Graves expressed concern on Director Bill Mayer’s request to RFP. Director Kevin 
Graves wondered why the quote provided by Terracon is not a reliable estimate. 
Director Bill Mayer clarified that the Town of Discovery Bay was provided an estimate. There are 
opportunities to look at things that will not have to be done all at once. Some things might be able to 
wait in order to save some money now. Reminded Director Kevin Graves that the purchase of the 
Community Center brought forth a struggle to pay it off, but it was a vision that paid off. 
Vice President Bryon Gutow expressed confusion regarding the acceptance of the quote given by a 
third party vendor. Vice President Bryon Gutow indicated that we have always accepted costs of 
projects quoted from consultants and doesn’t see how this issue is any different.  
Director Bill Mayer stated that bids from contractors do get analyzed and scrutinized. Director Bill Mayer 
understands Vice President Bryon Gutow’s position to oppose a large pool from the onset.  
Vice President Bryon Gutow confirmed his opposition and declared it was due to the financial ability of 
Zone 8 and what it can afford. He stated there are not enough funds to maintain a larger pool. He has 
an issue with all available funds being spent on one thing versus several things to help the community. 
Director Bill Mayer replied that the difference in running the large pool instead of the small pool would 
be $15,000 more a year, or $1,300 a month. He said it is not a large difference in the realm of things. 
Vice President Bryon Gutow clarified that the cost of the operation of the large pool was not his 
argument. He is concerned with the amount of resources it will take from Zone 8. 
Director Kevin Graves inquired about the $360,000 mentioned by Director Bill Mayer which he indicated 
the Board was not aware of. 
Finance Manager Julie Carter advised that there are $331,000 set in the budget for the Community 
Center. Not $360,000. That is the amount put aside for pool renovations.  
Director Kevin Graves acknowledged this is one of the most difficult decisions he has had to make in 
his 11 years on the Board. He cares for the community and that is why he continues to try to make 

6



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.4 

 

good decisions. He declared that he does not think there will be a large difference in quotes from other 
contractors. He asked where money would come from to maintain the rest of Zone 8 if all the funds are 
used on a larger pool. 
Director Bill Mayer stated that the Hofmann funds were not available two years ago and Zone 8 was still 
making it. He said the Town is looking into re-zoning and other alternatives that will help bring in more 
money. The Town is going to speak to Supervisor Diane Burgis’ office to ask for landscaping help. He 
stated the bigger pool will not cost the residents anything. Borrowing from the Town will still not bring 
changes to the pocketbooks of the residents. He advised that if decision to borrow from the Town was 
made, any interest on the loan would also be paid back to the Town. 
Director Kevin Graves asked how revenue would be earned to pay the loan back. 
Director Bill Mayer advised the future payments from the Hofmann money can be used to pay off this 
loan.  
Director Kevin Graves stated previous landscaping managers advised him that the lack of landscaping 
is owed to the Community Center taking all the Zone 8 funds. Maintenance was deferred while waiting 
for the Hofmann money to come in.  
Director Bill Mayer asked for clarification on the Board’s vote. Asked if the vote is not to go out to RFP, 
the big pool is done. 
General Manager Mike Davies clarified, a NO vote or a TIE vote will be declared a NO vote. 
Director Kevin Graves mentioned that if this Agenda Item goes out to RFP, there will be another two 
years without a swimming pool. 
Motion made by Director Bill Mayer to proceed with Request for Proposal on New Pool Project. 
Second by President Bill Pease.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 2, NOES: 2, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
General Manager Mike Davies announced staff cannot proceed with RFP of the pool. General Manager 
Mike Davies asked for direction from the Board on how to proceed.  
Town Counsel Rod Attebery declared a Motion Failure for Option 2. Town Counsel Attebery and 
General Manager Mike Davies reminded the Board that the Town currently has an active contract with 
Adam’s Pool Solutions for the refurbishment of the current pool. Town Counsel Attebery reminded the 
Board that the contract for the pool refurbishment was placed on hold. Direction was requested from the 
Board.  
Director Kevin Graves asked Town Counsel Attebery if the Board does not move ahead with the option 
to refurbish the existing pool, will that leave a hole in the ground behind the Community Center? 
Town Counsel Attebery confirmed that if the refurbishment is not proceeded, no action will be taken. 
Again, clear direction was requested. 
President Bill Pease asked for Board to make a motion on either Option 1 or Option 3. 
Motion made by Vice President Bryon Gutow to proceed with Option 3- Continue Refurbishing of 
Existing Pool. 
Second by Director Kevin Graves. 
Director Bill Mayer asked Legal Counsel Rod Attebery what would happen if there is a NO vote. 
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery advised there would be no direction, the motion would not move forward. 
Director Bill Mayer then asked if there is a NO vote, could then, the action be brought back to the Board 
to move ahead with the large pool. 
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery stated there is a possibility for the Items to be placed back on the Agendas. 
Vice President Bryon Gutow implored Director Bill Mayer and President Bill Pease make a decision and 
put the issue to rest. Requested the right decision be made for the community and utilize the other 
funds for more projects in Zone 8. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
President Bill Pease provided recommendation to the staff that Town ensures to closely scrutinize any 
newly developed issues that may have arisen since the last time the pool was assessed.  
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery stated the contract in question has already been approved. If any changes 
are to be made to the contract, that will need to come back to the Board for review. 
President Bill Pease stated he’d like to have the contractor check for any changes that may have 
occurred since the pool has been sitting for so long without any activity. President Bill Pease indicated 
he would like to ensure the project doesn’t continue if there are any issues with the current condition of 
the pool that cannot be corrected by the contractor. President Bill Pease requested the contractor 
reinspect the condition of the existing pool prior to commencing work. 
General Manager Mike Davies stated staff understands that direction. 
Director Kevin Graves mentioned that he is interested in making the right financial decision for the 
District. Thanked fellow Board Members for their vote and for moving forward. 
President Bill Pease agreed it was a difficult decision and mentioned the Town will move forward with 
the refurbishing of the existing pool. 
 

7



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.5 

 

President Bill Pease called a recess of the meeting. Board of Director’s Meeting will be readjourned at 
8:55 p.m. 
President Bill Pease called the Board of Director’s Meeting readjourned at 8:52 p.m. 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Advisian (WorleyParsons Group) Scope of Work to Perform 

Detailed Design and Construction Support Engineering Services for Outfall Diffuser Replacement Project 
in the Amount of $145,150.  
District Water Engineer Gregory Harris states the outfall diffuser has several ports missing and portion of 
the diffuser has become plugged causing it to no longer operate properly. Advisian was hired to prepare 
a report on options and costs to repair the diffuser. The Town opted to repair the diffuser in place with a 
larger header pipe. CIP budget of $500,000 was set for permits, engineering and construction of the 
repairs. Advisian prepared a proposal for $145,150 to continue with the ongoing tasks including: 

• Project Management 

• Bathymetric surveys 

• Diffuser Design 

• Regulatory Support 

• Bid Support 

• Engineering Support During Construction 

• Project Closeout Documentation 
Motion made by Director Bill Mayer to approve staff recommendation to move forward with Professional 
Service Agreement with Advisian (Worley Parsons Group) for Outfall Diffuser Replacement services as 
detailed in their Scope of Work dated August 18, 2020. 
Second by Vice President Bryon Gutow.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

3. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Stantec Scope of Work to Perform Computational Fluid 
Dynamics Modeling Engineering Services for UV System at Plant No. 2 as part of the Denitrification 
Project in the Amount of $54,500. 
District Water Engineer Gregory Harris said hydraulic turbulence in the UV channels was interfering 
with proper operations of the UV equipment. Full performance is required to comply with Title 22 
standards. Addressing the conditions in the UV channel was placed on the CIP with a budget of 
$160,000. Stantec has prepared a cost to preform Computational Fluid Dynamics Modeling of the UV 
channel to identify the specific improvements needed to improve the performance of the UV channels. 
Public comment regarding: 

• Inquiry if this project is part of the upgrade plan at Water Treatment Plant Number 2. 
District Water Engineer Gregory Harris confirmed this project is related to the upgrade. 
Motion made by Vice President Bryon Gutow to approve staff recommendation for a Professional Service 
Agreement with Stantec for Computational Fluid Dynamics Modeling Engineering Services in the cost of 
$54,000 as detailed in their Scope of Work dated August 20, 2020. 
Second by Director Bill Mayer.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

4. Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing Luhdorff & Scalmanini to Prepare the Water System Asset 
Management Plan in the Amount of $224,612. 
Water Engineer Justin Shobe indicated that periodically the Town generates a Water Master Plan. The 
last Water Master Plan was created in 2012. The purpose of the Water Master Plan is to allow the 
Town to be proactive instead of reactive in identifying and addressing supply, storage and treatment 
needs for the Town’s water. The Water Management Plan will serve as a tool that documents and 
prioritizes the relative risk of failure, forecasts the need to replace assets and implement refurbishments 
and repairs while adhering to funding availability. 
President Bill Pease asked what the estimated timeframe to complete the Water Management Plan. 
Water Engineer Justin Shobe advised the plan should be completed in approximately 16 months. 
Public comment regarding: 

• Inquiry into how the condition of an asset such as water pipeline is evaluated. 
  Water Engineer Justin Shobe advised several things are evaluated such as age of underground 

pipelines, soil conditions and maintenance are compared to case studies.  

• Inquiry into total pre-payment upfront versus a payment schedule 
  President Bill Pease advised that this project will be paid as all other projects, in payment phases. 

Motion made by Director Kevin Graves to approve staff recommendation for a Professional Service 
Agreement with Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers to Prepare the Water System Asset 
Management Plan as detailed in their Scope of Work dated September 9, 2020 in the amount of 
$224,612. 
Second by Vice President Bryon Gutow.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

8



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2020 - Pg.6 

 

 
5. Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing Luhdorff & Scalmanini to Prepare the America’s Water 

Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk and Resilience Assessment in the Amount of $25,000. 
Water Engineer Justin Shobe indicated that as required by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 
the America’s Water Infrastructure Act has federally mandated the requirement for the Town to have a 
Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA). This is a self-certification of an evaluation of risks of natural 
hazards and malevolent acts. The EPA has created a Vulnerability Self-Assessment Tool (VSAT 2.0) to 
evaluate the required parameters. Then the Town will need to submit an Emergency Response Plan 
(ERP) to the EPA by December 30, 2021. Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers will work with the 
Town by researching and collecting data to prepare the RRA and submit a self-certification form to the 
EPA by the June 30, 2021 deadline. Town will be responsible for updating the ERP with the EPA. 
President Bill Pease asked Water Engineer Justin Shobe how many other RRA’s he will be doing for 
other water districts. 
Water Engineer Justin Shobe advised he will be doing just one other one for a smaller district.  
Director Bill Mayer asked what the Town will receive in return for this fee. Will there be a report the Town 
will receive with the outcome of this research? 
Water Engineer Justin Shobe advised the Town will be the sole custodian of this information since it will 
not be submitted to the EPA. This assessment will calculate risks to help the Town identify vulnerabilities 
within the infrastructure.  
Public comment regarding: 

• How many systems are we serving? 
President Bill Pease advised there are more than 3,300 but less than 50,000. Public was referred to 
General Manager Mike Davies for a more precise number. 
Motion made by Director Bill Mayer to approve staff recommendation for a Professional Service 
Agreement with Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers to prepare the America’s Water 
Infrastructure Act Risk and Resilience Assessment as detailed in their Scope of Work dated August 21, 
2020 in the amount of $25,000. 
Second by Vice President Bryon Gutow.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
H. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

 
I. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 Director Bill Mayer requested an update on the next Regular BOD meeting of any landscaping progress. 
 
J.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 9:20 to the regular meeting on October 7, 2020 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community 
Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
//ym//092120 

9



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for September 23, 2020 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING  

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

Wednesday September 23, 2020  

SPECIAL MEETING 7:00 P.M.   

Website address: www.todb.ca.gov  

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be closed 
to the public.  
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  
 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE:  
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (877)778-1806  
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 

SPECIAL MEETING 7:00 P.M.  

A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

1. Call business meeting to order 7:02 p.m.  

2. Pledge of Allegiance- Led by Director Bill Mayer.  

3. Roll Call- All Present. Director Kevin Graves present via teleconference. 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)  

None. 

 

C.  BOARD MEMBER VACANCY 
1. Applicant Review for Board Seat. 
General Manager Mike Davies advised Director Robert Leete resigned his seat on the BOD on September 3, 
2020. Contra Costa County Election Division was mailed a written notice on September 4, 2020. Town of 
Discovery Bay has 60 days from the resignation to find a qualified replacement. Notice of the vacancy was 
posted in four (4) locations on September 4, 2020. Applications were made available online and at the Town 
Office. Deadline to turn in applications was September 21, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. Each of the eight (8) applicants 
are placed in order according the Secretary of State Randomized Alphabet Drawing. Each candidate will have 
two (2) minutes to express to the Board why they are the best candidate for the vacated seat. Following their 
presentations, Board members can ask one clarifying question.  

• Leslie Belcher 
Has lived in Discovery Bay for close to 25 years. Stated she is a great candidate for the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Service District Board because of the skills she possesses with her work 
and volunteer experiences. Has a bachelor’s degree in business and a doctorate in law. She believes 
it is her time to contribute. She and her spouse own several small to medium sized businesses in the 
county. Possesses negotiating skills, problem solving and drive. Vows to display honesty integrity and 
professionalism. Researches every issue prior to advocating for a recommendation. 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bill Pease • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

10

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for September 23, 2020 - Pg.2 

 

• Donald Littell 
He has lived in DB for 11 years. Feels he will be a positive team member. Has been responsible for 
making many financial decisions, has prepared quarterly budgets. Will responsibly manage Town 
funds and make decisions with the Town’s interest in mind. Would like to improve the neighborhoods 
and community assets. He thinks Town’s unique circumstances call for creative solutions. He has the 
time, desire and background to help lead Town of Discovery Bay into the future. 

• Carolyn Graham 
Has business experience. Retired as Vice President of Operations, Human Resources and 
Landscaping, IT and Purchasing. Has worked with a diverse population of employees and clients. Has 
lived in Town of Discovery Bay for nine (9) years. Has ideas of using the Hofmann money to possibly 
look into adding senior activities, tee ball and 5K races. She believes eighty percent of this job is 
related to Wastewater Treatment but twenty percent are things they see every day. She wants to 
accelerate the landscaping project.  

• Charles (Bill) Helfrick 
Stated he believes he has the education, work experience and the most knowledge with the current 
issues of Town of Discovery Bay. He has attended meetings and subcommittee meeting in the last 
three years. Believes he will bring an open mind and diversity to the board. He believes the biggest 
issue facing the Board is the lack of funding for Zone 8 and Community Center, recreational activities 
and to maintain the landscaping. He will be committed to finding a balance between maintaining the 
Community Center and maintaining the landscaping. 

• Ashley Porter 
Indicated she believes the Board should be as diverse as our community. She stated she has 
professional work experience and Board experience which make her an excellent candidate for the 
open seat on the Board. She has experience in municipality purchasing. She is confident she can bring 
valuable experience and a fresh perspective.  

• Eric Swalwell 
Retired Police Officer and Police Chief as well as a retired Corporate Security Manager. He has a BA 
in Business Administration. He believes this position will allow him to continue to use his experience 
in public service. He was a Trustee with the City of Dublin. He was President of the City of Dublin 
School Board, President for the City of Dublin Soccer Board, Vice President of the City of Dublin 
Baseball League. He was also a member of the Alameda County Grand Jury. He stated that Directors 
of the Board should have bold vision and promote long term, strategic direction. You must develop an 
alignment with the citizens of Town of Discovery Bay. The rationale of his decisions will be made clear 
to the community even if the decision he has made is against what he believes to be right. His form of 
transparency is open, honest communication with others. He calls it ethics and integrity.  

• Alberto Delgado 
He is a Chemical Executive with management experience. He was a member of the Chemical Industry 
Council of California where he served as Chairman. He is knowledgeable and able to help Town of 
Discovery Bay with the sanitation issues which he believes to be one of the biggest consumer of the 
Town’s budget. 

• Frank Visintin 
Declared he has nothing to add besides the document he has already submitted. He looks forward to 
the Board’s questions. 

Legal Counsel Rod Attebery reminded President Bill Pease that each Board member can ask each applicant 
a question. 
President Bill Pease asked Vice President Bryon Gutow if he had any questions for Applicant Leslie Belcher. 
Vice President Bryon Gutow asked a question and directed it to all the applicants. Why are you interested in 
this Board position that became available due to a vacancy and why didn’t each candidate run for the election. 

• Lesley Belcher advised that she is a private person but believes in public service. She is in the 
background making everything work. She felt it was an opportunity to serve the community in a 
capacity that she feels she has the skillset for without having to go through the public process of the 
election. 

Director Bill Mayer asked if Applicant Leslie Belcher considered running for the election. 

• Lesley Belcher stated she did consider it, however the timing was not right with family, work and the 
business’ that they run and there were other candidates that were very qualified. 

Director Kevin Graves asked if each candidate had anything else to convey to the Board that they didn’t have 
enough time to convey in the two minutes they were given. 

• Lesley Belcher was concerned that her first response may not have been heard due to reception. She 
relayed that she has a lot of volunteer experience. She has attended meeting and has an interest. 
States she is familiar with the issues. Because she is a private person, she feels she can work behind 
the scenes without being public about it. 

President Bill Pease advised all candidates that he will impose a limit to answers to the Board’s questions to 

11



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for September 23, 2020 - Pg.3 

 

one (1) minute. 
Director Kevin Graves declared Point of Order. Indicated that other answers to questions were not imposed a 
time limit. 
President Bill Pease advised that all answers to any Board questions will be limited to a one (1) minute 
response. 

• Donald Littell advised that he was encouraged by many of his friends to apply for the open Board 
position when a seat became available. He decided it was a good time to become involved in the 
community. He states he understands the way community issues have an impact on property value. 
He declared it would be rewarding to be a part of the team effort to better the community. He will do 
what is in the best interest of the public. 

Director Bill Mayer asked if he had considered running in the election. 

• Donald Littell advised that he had not considered running, however he decided it was a good time with 
the vacancy of a Board seat. 

• Carolyn Graham told the Board she is running for the election for a Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Service District Board Member. With her strong desire to be on the Board she felt the effort to campaign 
for the position was well worth it.  

Director Bill Mayer asked, “What is your background or training that gives you the ability to make decisions 
necessary for the water or wastewater operations?” 

• Carolyn Graham advised she doesn’t have any experience in that; however she is a fast learner and 
anxious to learn. She would be surrounded by Board members and could draw from their experience, 
as well as that of Town staff and consultants. 

Legal Counsel Rod Attebery asked if there was anything she’d like to add as asked by Director Kevin Graves. 

• Carolyn Graham wanted to suggest communicating more through the Facebook App. She also said 
work can be done to better provide timely effective communication to the community. She can consider 
all points of views to set policies and decide what’s best for the whole community.  

• Charles Helfrick stated he did not consider running for the Board. He expressed interest in the two 
year term. States he would like to see more interactions with the Board and the public. He’d like to see 
meetings between the Board Directors and the public. 

• Ashley Porter says she did consider running for the Board however she decided the timing wasn’t right 
and needed more time to discuss this opportunity with her family. This vacancy allowed her more time 
to discuss the seat with her family and she feels she has the support she needs. 

• Eric Swalwell advised that he did consider running for the Board however, his wife became ill and he 
needed to focus on her recovery. He couldn’t abandon that responsibility but now his wife is doing a 
lot better. States he is sincere in what he says and considers ethics and integrity an important part of 
his life. Mr. Swalwell advised that Town of Discovery Bay is a community of fellowship. He said he 
would like to put his experience to use. 

• Alberto Delgado stated he is a Chemical Engineer. He said he had not considered running for the 
Board but the opportunity presented itself. He had previously expressed his interest to some Board 
members and decided to run. 

• Frank Visintin advised that he didn’t consider running for the Board because there were too many 
candidates running and felt that it would dilute the vote. He had nothing further to say.  

2. Approve Procedure for Voting on Appointment. 
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery presented to the Board the Town’s Policy 002, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  In 
the absence of an adopted procedure, Rosenberg’s provides that it is the chair’s duty to apply the rules of 
conduct of the meeting. The bylaws for the Town of Discovery Bay identify that vacancies and appointments 
of vacancies are reviewed under the Government Code. Government Code identifies time frames but it does 
not provide details with respect to voting an appointment. The Board has adopted Rosenberg’s Rules of Order 
which does not provide specifics for making an appointment and taking a vote. Rosenberg’s Rules of Order 
does provide a method for voting.  
President Bill Pease advised of interest in implementing a procedure to narrow down the list of applicants. 
President Bill Pease suggested each Board Member submit their top three (3) or four (4) candidates and 
submit those names to the Board Secretary. A matrix with the Board Member’s selections will then be created 
for the community to see. This will show any consensus and assist in the selection process. 
Vice President Bryon Gutow agreed with this idea and suggested selecting three (3) candidates. 
Director Kevin Graves suggested listing up to three (3). He is also concerned about his assignment in Butte 
County, he would like to provide visual aids to the Board and the public. His recommendation is to not have 
visual aids that everyone will not have access to. 
President Bill Pease advised that it will be possible to upload the matrix on the website and follow along with 
making marks on the matrix they can have at home.  
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery advised this is possible to present for public access. 
President Bill Pease explained the process in larger detail and Director Kevin Graves agreed that his 
suggestion will resolve his concern about allowing the public access to the matrix. 

12



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for September 23, 2020 - Pg.4 

 

Director Bill Mayer agreed with Vice President Bryon Gutow that three (3) candidates is plenty. He also 
recommended moving the selection up and not waiting two (2) weeks. President Bill Pease agreed. Vice 
President Bryon Gutow agreed. Director Kevin Graves asked what the hurry is and asked for an explanation 
to expedite the decision.  
President Bill Pease advised that if there is no conclusion, it gives the Board some more time and not be 
rushed if they have to make a choice. 
Director Kevin Graves agreed to change the selection date. 
The Board decided to create a Special Board of Director’s Meeting on Thursday, October 1, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
Adopting procedures established in the Staff Report with the following changes: 
The time of the Special Board Meeting will be October 1, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
Each Board member will select up to three (3) nominated candidates. 
The matrix will be included on the website for public access. 
Clarification requested by General Manager Mike Davies that the matrix will be included in the meeting’s 
Agenda Packet. 
Public comment regarding: 

• Concern that the time of the Special Board of Director’s meeting. Making the meeting at 3:00 p.m. 
might not allow some of the community to attend.  

 
Motion made by Director Bill Mayer to approve the amended procedure to fill the vacancy on the Board. 
Second by Vice President Bryon Gutow. 
AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
 

D. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 8:12 p.m. to the Special Board of Director’s meeting of October 1, 2020 beginning at 7:00 
p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
  

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”  
  

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection on the District’s website located at https://www.todb.ca.gov. 

13

https://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for October 1, 2020 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING  

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

Thursday October 1, 2020  

SPECIAL MEETING 3:00 P.M.   

Website address: www.todb.ca.gov  

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board Chambers will be closed 
to the public.  
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  
 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE:  
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (877)778-1806  
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 

SPECIAL MEETING 7:00 P.M.  

A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

1. Call business meeting to order 3:00 p.m.- By President Bill Pease. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance- Led by President Bill Pease. 

3. Roll Call- All Present. 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)  

None. 
 

C.  BOARD MEMBER VACANCY 
1. Appoint Individual to Vacancy Created by Robert Leete’s resignation. 
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery discussed the procedure for appointing someone to the Board vacancy created 
by Director Robert Leete’s resignation. At the Special Board Meeting on September 23, 2020, the Board 
adopted a procedure to fill the vacancy. Each Director will turn in a list of no more than three (3) preferred 
candidates. The Director’s picks will be logged onto a matrix and uploaded to the Town website as Additional 
Material. After, the Board will follow the Rosenberg’s Rules of Order as adopted by the Board. 
Director Bill Mayer asked if the announcement of the names is to seek common ground.  
President Bill Pease stated this was correct. 
Legal Counsel Rod Attebery reminded President Bill Pease that Director Kevin Graves has confidentially 
submitted his selection to General Manager Mike Davies and to the Town’s Legal Counsel since he is off site. 
General Manager Mike Davies read the submission aloud as follows: 
 President Bill Pease submitted the names of Alberto Delgado, Ashley Porter 
 Vice President Bryon Gutow submitted the names of Lesley Belcher, Carolyn Graham, Ashley Porter 
 Director Kevin Graves submitted the names of Carolyn Graham, Ashley Porter 
 Director Bill Mayer submitted the names of Alberto Delgado, Eric Swalwell 
President Bill Pease asked for Board Members to ask any clarifying questions. None was asked. 
Public comment:  
 None.  

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bill Pease • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director- Ashely Porter 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

14

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for October 1, 2020 - Pg.2 

 

Motion made by Director Kevin Graves that Ashley Porter be appointed to the Board for the Town of Discovery 
Bay. 
Second by Vice President Bryon Gutow. 
AYES: 4, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
General Manager Mike Davies expressed his congratulation to the new director. 
All seated Directors and Legal Counsel offered their congratulations and commended all participants for their 
interest. 
 

D. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None. 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 8:14 p.m. to the next regular meeting of October 7, 2020 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
  

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”  
  

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection on the District’s website located at https://www.todb.ca.gov.”  

15

https://www.todb.ca.gov/
https://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

October 7, 2020 

 
Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Michael R. Davies, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 1,546,403.17 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2020/2021 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-4 

16



U.S. Bank $940,044.95

Veolia Water North America $141,326.29

Pacific Gas & Electric $119,695.79

Town of Discovery Bay CSD $79,202.07

Dryco Construction, Inc. $62,416.90

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. $41,521.09

Herwit Engineering $37,649.80

Bill Brandt Ford $27,474.71

Tree West $16,900.00

Neumiller & Beardslee $15,855.50

City Of Brentwood $14,423.63

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $11,064.75

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System $8,126.11

Badger Meter $7,377.25

Precision IT Consulting $3,816.30

Univar Solutions USA Inc. $2,911.95

Freedom Mailing Service, Inc $2,893.40

Matrix Trust $2,573.83

Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. $2,373.48

Mt. Diablo Resource Recovery $1,616.28

SDRMA $1,566.45

TASC $1,073.30

Bradley And Sons $915.00

Ricoh USA, Inc $682.49

Aflac $365.58

Weco Industries LLC $284.26

Office Depot $258.05

Water Utility Refund Customer $243.87

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. $209.66

Cintas $203.43

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company $200.00

UniFirst Corporation $180.00

Discovery Bay Designs $152.00

Upper Case Printing, Inc. $141.00

Discovery Pest Control $138.00

Department of Justice $128.00

Denalect Alarm Company $105.00

Lesley Marable $97.98

Shred-It USA-Concord $71.86

Concentra $57.00

R & B Company $41.14

Verizon Wireless $25.02

$1,546,403.17

                               For The Meeting On October 7, 2020

                             Town of Discovery Bay CSD

                             Fiscal Year 7/20 - 6/21

                              Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

17



Agenda Item F-1

18



Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

October 7, 2020 

Prepared By:     Michael Davies, General Manager 
Submitted By:   Michael Davies, General Manager 

Agenda Title:  

Discussion and Possible Action to Establish an Updated and Restated Employee Personnel Manual and Approve 
Resolution No. 2020-21. 

Recommended Action 

Approve the attached updated and restated Employee Personnel Manual and approve Resolution No. 2020-21. 

Executive Summary 

The Town’s Employee Personnel Manual (“Manual”) is the controlling employee relations document for all District 
employees. The manual was last amended by the Board on May 15, 2019.  The updated Manual has been reviewed by 
the Internal Operations Committee at its Regular Meeting on October 7, 2020.  The Committee recommends approval of 
the revisions.   The major changes are listed below:   

Section 2.1.D Town may provide 457b retirement employee contribution match annually. 
Section 3.2.A Providing 2 weeks accrual of vacation year 1 & allowing taking of 1 week vacation year 1 

The above sections are attached and highlighted for your reference. 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

May 15, 2019 Board Action 

Attachments 

Draft Excised & Highlighted Revision to Personnel Manual
Draft Personnel Manual with Recommended Revisions Full Document
Draft Resolution No. 2020-21 

AGENDA ITEM: G-1 

19



October 7, 2020 

Board of Director’s Meeting 

Agenda Item G-1 

Draft Excised & Highlighted Revision to 

Personnel Manual  

20



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 1 

 

ARTICLE 1 

EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

 

Section 1.1.  Employee Classifications.  Employee classifications are as follows: 

 

A. Regular Full-Time Employees.  An employee who is regularly scheduled to 

work not less than thirty (30) hours per week for a period of indefinite duration is referred to as a 

regular full-time employee.  A regular full-time employee is eligible for the benefits described in 

this Manual. 

 

B. Regular Part-Time Employees.  An employee who is regularly scheduled to 

work less than thirty (30) hours per week for a period of indefinite duration is referred to as a 

regular part-time employee.  Regular part-time employees are eligible for benefits only as 

specifically described in this Manual. 

 

C. Part Time, Seasonal, and Temporary Employees.  Part Time, Seasonal, and 

Temporary Employees (“PST Employees”) are persons hired to work on special projects or 

assignments with the understanding that such work will be completed within a specified period of 

time.  When the need arises, the Town may hire employees for a temporary period or contract out 

and may use a temporary staffing contract service or agency independent of the Town.  PST 

Employees do not become regular employees as a result of the passage of time.  PST Employees 

are not eligible for the benefits described in this Manual. 

 

D. “Full-Time Temporary” Employees.  “Full-Time Temporary” employees, 

at the time of employment, are expected to work one year or longer. 

 

E. Exempt/Nonexempt Employees.  Exempt employees are those employees 

who are exempt from earning overtime compensation; nonexempt employees are those employees 

eligible for overtime compensation in accordance with the provisions of applicable wage and hour 

laws.  Overtime compensation requirements are set forth in the Section 4 of this Manual entitled 

“Hours of Work, Overtime, and Pay Day”.  The employment positions of the General Manager, 

Assistant General Manager, Finance Manager, Parks and Landscape Manager, and Water and 

Wastewater Manager are exempt.  Other positions may or may not be exempt, and the status of 

the employee in that position will be established at the time of hiring, depending on the duties and 

responsibilities of the position. 

 

F. Hiring Powers.  The General Manager and Legal Counsel are hired by and 

serve at the pleasure of the Board.  All other employees of the Town are hired by and serve at the 

pleasure of the General Manager, subject to this Manual and Board approval of the authorized 

position schedule.  The authorized position schedule is located within the Town’s annual budget. 

 

Section 1.2.  Employee Benefits.   Regular Full-Time Employees will receive the following 

benefits: 

 

A. Medical Benefit.  The Town provides medical coverage to its eligible 

employees and their dependents.  Contact Human Resources for available plans and details. 

 

21



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 2 

 

B. Ancillary Benefits.  The Town provides vision, dental and supplemental life 

insurance to eligible employees and their dependents.  Life insurance and Employee Assistance 

Program is provided to eligible employees.  Contact Human Resources for available plans and 

details. 

 

C. Additional Benefits at Employee Cost and Election.  At employee expense, 

the Town makes available AFLAC insurance, Flexible Spending Account and 457b retirement. If 

an employee declines medical insurance the Town will contribute $250 per month into the 

employee’s 457b account (this is not subject to vesting).   Contact Human Resources for details.  

 

D. 457b Retirement.  An employee may participate in the Town’s 457b 

retirement plan.   Annually, the Town may authorize an employee contribution match up to a 

predetermined amount.   Employees after completion of their first year of employment will vest 

33% in the Town match, vest 66% after completion of year two, and be fully vested in the Town 

match after completion of three years of employment.   Not subject to match is the Town’s 

contribution of $250 in lieu of medical insurance.    Contact Human Resources for details. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 3 

 

ARTICLE 2  

HOLIDAYS AND TIME OFF 

 

Section 2.1.  Holidays.  The Town observes the following holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day, January 1st 

President’s Birthday, the third Monday in February 

Memorial Day, the last Monday of May 

Independence Day, July 4th  

Labor Day, the first Monday in September 

Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday of November 

Friday Following Thanksgiving, the fourth Friday of November 

Christmas Eve, December 24th  

Christmas Day, December 25th  

Winter Closure* (12/26 – 12/31) 

Floating Holiday 

 

* The Winter Closure are those four weekdays beginning December 26 up to and including 

December 31st of each year. Employees are required to take one of the following during the 

Closure: administrative time, floating holiday or vacation day.   The Winter Closure only applies 

to non-essential personnel. 

 

A. Eligibility.  Unless otherwise provided in this policy, all regular full-time 

employees will receive holiday time off with pay at their normal base rate unless otherwise 

provided in this Manual.  Part-Time Seasonal Temporary Employees are not eligible for paid 

holiday benefits with the exception of a “Full-Time Temporary” employee who, at the time of 

employment, is expected to work for one year or longer will also receive paid holiday benefits.  

Moreover, all employees are ineligible for holiday benefits while they are on leave of absence.   

 

B. Holidays and Weekends.  Holidays are to be taken on the day they occur.  

Holidays which fall on Saturday will be observed the preceding Friday, and those which fall on 

Sunday will be observed the following Monday. Holidays that occur during an eligible employee’s 

vacation will not be counted as vacation days taken.   

 

C. Pay In Lieu of Time Off.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, require 

some or all employees to work on Town-observed holidays, in which case the Town will provide 

pay in lieu of time off. 

 

Section 2.2.  Vacation Policy.  The Town provides vacation benefits to eligible employees 

to enable them to take paid time off for rest and recreation.  The Town believes this time is valuable 

for employees in order to enhance their productivity and to make their work experience with the 

Town personally satisfying. 

 

A. Vacation Accrual.  All regular full-time employees, whether exempt or 

nonexempt, are eligible to accrue vacation benefits based on their continuous service, measured 

from the date of hire.  A “Full-Time Temporary” employee, who, at the time of employment, is 

expected to work one year or longer, is also eligible to accrue vacation benefits.  “Continuous 

23



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 4 

 

length of service” is defined as service that is uninterrupted by termination of employment and 

subsequent rehire by the Town or a break in service that has been bridged.  No more than 5 days 

of vacation may be taken during the first year of service, unless otherwise permitted by the General 

Manager.  Vacation accrues according to the following schedule: 

 

 

Years of Continuous Service 

 

Vacation Accrual 

 

  

Date of hire through fifth year 

 

10/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 10 days (80 hours) per year. 

Sixth year through tenth year 

 

15/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 15 (120 hours) days per year. 

Eleventh year and thereafter 

 

20/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 20 (160 hours) days per year. 

  

24



October 7, 2020 

Board of Director’s Meeting 

Agenda Item G-1 

Draft Personnel Manual Recommended Revisions 

Full Document 

25



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

ARTICLE 1 

INTRODUCTION 

Section 1.1.  Personnel Manual ........................................................................................................4  

Section 1.2.  Manual Revisions........................................................................................................4 

Section 1.3.  Manual Acknowledgement .........................................................................................4 

Section 1.4.  Town of Discovery Bay ..............................................................................................4 

Section 1.5.  Equal Employment Opportunity .................................................................................4 

Section 1.6.  Employment at Will ....................................................................................................5 

Section 1.7.  Policy Against Harassment. ........................................................................................5 

Section 1.8.  Applicability ...............................................................................................................6 

 

ARTICLE 2 

EMPLOYMENT STATUS AND BENEFITS 

Section 2.1.  Employee Classifications ............................................................................................7 

Section 2.2.  Employee Benefits ..................................................................................................... 7 

 

ARTICLE 3 

HOLIDAYS AND TIME OFF 

Section 3.1.  Holidays ......................................................................................................................9 

Section 3.2.  Vacation Policy ...........................................................................................................9 

Section 3.3.  Milestone Policy - Service Recognition ...................................................................11 

Section 3.4.  Sick Leave .................................................................................................................12 

Section 3.5.  Leaves of Absence. ...................................................................................................13 

Section 3.6.  Employment During Leave of Absence ....................................................................26 

 

ARTICLE 4 

HOURS OF WORK, OVERTIME, AND PAY DAY 

Section 4.1.  Hours of Work ..........................................................................................................27 

Section 4.2.  Meal and Rest Periods. .............................................................................................27 

Section 4.3   Basic Pay Structure ...................................................................................................27 

Section 4.4.  Overtime Pay. ...........................................................................................................28 

Section 4.5.  Other Types of Pay. ..................................................................................................28 

Section 4.6.  Place and Time for Payment of Wages. ....................................................................29 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 

  
Program Area: 

Administrative 

  
Date Established: 

August 20, 2003 
  

Policy Name: 
Personnel Manual 

  
  
Date Amended: 

October 7, 2020  

Policy Number: 
005 

  
Resolution: 

2020-?? 

  

26



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 2 

 

ARTICLE 5 

RULES OF CONDUCT 

Section 5.1.  Open Door .................................................................................................................30 

Section 5.2.  Rules of Conduct, Discipline and Termination.........................................................30 

Section 5.3.  Exit Interview............................................................................................................33 

Section 5.4.  Employment at Will ..................................................................................................33 

 

ARTICLE 6 

WORK REGULATIONS 

Section 6.1.  Personnel Records. ....................................................................................................34 

Section 6.2.  Personal Telephone Calls ..........................................................................................34 

Section 6.3.  Smoking ....................................................................................................................34 

Section 6.4.  Dress and Grooming Standards ................................................................................34 

Section 6.5.  Lactation Room ........................................................................................................ 34 

Section 6.6.  Employment of Relatives ..........................................................................................35 

Section 6.7.  Conflicts of Interest...................................................................................................35 

Section 6.8.  Safety ........................................................................................................................36 

Section 6.9.  Performance Evaluations ..........................................................................................36 

Section 6.10 Merit Increases ..........................................................................................................37 

 

ARTICLE 7 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

Section 7.1.  Purpose of Policy ......................................................................................................38 

Section 7.2.  Definitions.................................................................................................................38 

Section 7.3.  Prohibited Conduct. ..................................................................................................39 

Section 7.4.  Disciplinary Action. ..................................................................................................40 

Section 7.5.  Management Awareness ...........................................................................................41 

Section 7.6.  Use of Legal Drugs ...................................................................................................41 

Section 7.7.  Unregulated or Authorized Conduct. ........................................................................42 

Section 7.8.  Confidentiality ..........................................................................................................42 

Section 7.9.  Drug Testing for Safety-Sensitive Positions .............................................................42 

Section 7.10 Pre-Employment Testing ......................................................................................... 42 

Section 7.11 Duty to Cooperate .................................................................................................... 42 

 

ARTICLE 8 

TECHNOLOGY 

Section 8.1.  Voice-Mail, E-Mails and Technology Policy ...........................................................43 

Section 8.2.  Technology Resources Definition.............................................................................43 

Section 8.3.  Authorization ............................................................................................................43 

Section 8.4.  Use ............................................................................................................................43 

Section 8.5.  Improper Use ............................................................................................................44 

Section 8.6.  Town Access To Technology Resources ..................................................................44 

Section 8.7.  The Internet And On-Line Services ..........................................................................46 

Section 8.8.  Monitoring ................................................................................................................46 

Section 8.9.  Confidential Information ..........................................................................................46 

Section 8.10 Software Use / License Restrictions .........................................................................47 

Section 8.11 Software For Home Use............................................................................................47 

27



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 3 

 

Section 8.12 Security .....................................................................................................................47 

Section 8.13 Remote Access To Technology Resources ...............................................................47 

Section 8.14 Audits ........................................................................................................................48 

 

ARTICLE 9 

VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE 

Section 9.1.  Statement of Policy ...................................................................................................49 

Section 9.2.  Workplace Violence Defined ....................................................................................49 

Section 9.3.  Reporting...................................................................................................................49 

Section 9.4.  Investigation ..............................................................................................................49 

Section 9.5.  Corrective Action and Discipline..............................................................................50 

 

ARTICLE 10 

MOBILE DEVICE POLICY 

Section 10.1.  Mobile Device Policy .............................................................................................51 

 

ARTICLE 11 

VEHICLE USAGE POLICY 

Section 11.1.  Vehicle Usage Policy ..............................................................................................52 

 

ARTICLE 12 

COMMUNITY CENTER POOL STAFF USE POLICY 

Section 12.1.  Community Center Pool Staff Use Policy……..…………………………………53 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 4 

 

ARTICLE 1 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Section 1.1.  Personnel Manual.  This Manual is intended to help employees become better 

acquainted with the Town of Discovery Bay (“Town”).  It describes many of the Town’s 

employment practices, policies and procedures.   

 

The Town reserves the right to make changes to this Manual (see Manual Revisions, 

below).  Employees are responsible for knowing about and understanding those changes once they 

have been disseminated.  The Town also reserves the right to interpret the provisions of this 

Manual.  For this reason, employees should check with their supervisors to obtain information 

regarding specific employment guidelines, practices, policies, or procedures. 

 

Because employment at the Town is “at will” (see Section 1.6), employees should not 

interpret anything in this Manual as creating a contract or guarantee of continued employment.   

 

Section 1.2.  Manual Revisions.  The Town reserves the right to make changes to this 

Manual and to any employment policy, practice, work rule, or benefit, at any time without prior 

notice.  However, any such change is effective only if it is in writing and is authorized by the Board 

of Directors.  Except as otherwise provided in this Manual, no one has the authority to make any 

promise or commitment contrary to what is in this Manual.  This Manual replaces all earlier 

Manuals and supersedes all prior policies, practices, and procedures.   

 

Section 1.3.  Manual Acknowledgement.  Employees are required to read the Manual in its 

entirety, sign the acknowledgement form at the back of this Manual, and return the form to Human 

Resources for placement in their personnel file.  This will provide the Town with a record that 

each employee has read this Manual.  Employees are to contact their supervisor or Human 

Resources if there are any questions or lack of understanding regarding any information contained 

in the Manual.  It is the responsibility of each employee to review the Manual frequently for any 

changes or updates.  The Manual can be accessed online at:   https://www.todb.ca.gov/town-

discovery-bay-board-policies 

 

Section 1.4.  Town of Discovery Bay.  The Town is a community services district, 

organized under the California Government Code, and the creation of which was approved by the 

voters in 1997.  It serves the residents of Discovery Bay, and is an independent special district.  It 

is, in fact, a local government, and has the powers specified by law.  It is governed by a Board of 

Directors (“Board”), consisting of five elected members.  Pursuant to its formation documents, it 

also carries out the functions of the former Discovery Bay Municipal Advisory Committee. 

 

Section 1.5.  Equal Employment Opportunity.  It is the Town’s policy to provide equal 

employment opportunity for all applicants and employees.  The Town does not unlawfully 

discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, or related 

medical conditions), gender identity, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, physical or mental 

disability, legally protected medical condition or information, genetic information, family care 

status, military caregiver status, veteran status, marital status, domestic partner status, sexual 

orientation, or any other basis protected by local, state, or federal laws.  When necessary, the Town 

also makes reasonable accommodations for disabled employees and for pregnant employees who 

29

https://www.todb.ca.gov/town-discovery-bay-board-policies
https://www.todb.ca.gov/town-discovery-bay-board-policies


 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 5 

 

request an accommodation, with the advice of their health care providers, for pregnancy, 

childbirth, or related medical conditions.   

 

The Town prohibits sexual harassment and the unlawful harassment of any individual. For 

information about the types of conduct that constitute impermissible harassment, the Town’s 

internal procedures for addressing complaints of harassment, the legal remedies available through 

and complaint procedures of the appropriate state and federal agencies and directions on how to 

contact these agencies, please refer to the Town’s Policy Against Harassment located at Section 

1.7 of this Manual.   

 

This policy applies to all areas of employment including recruitment, hiring, training, 

promotion, compensation, benefits, transfer, disciplinary action, and social and recreational 

programs.  It is the responsibility of every manager and employee to conscientiously follow this 

policy.  Any employee having any questions regarding this policy should discuss them with his or 

her immediate supervisor or the General Manager.   

 

Section 1.6.  Employment at Will.  All employment at the Town is “at-will.” This means 

that both employees and the Town have the right to terminate employment at any time, with or 

without advance notice, and with or without cause.  Employees also may be demoted or 

disciplined, and the terms of their employment may be altered at any time, with or without cause, 

at the discretion of the Town.  No one other than a majority of the Board of Directors has the 

authority to alter this arrangement, to enter into an agreement for employment for a specified 

period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to this at-will status.  Any such agreement must 

be in writing and must be signed by the President of the Board and by the affected employee, and 

must express a clear and unambiguous intent to alter the at-will nature of the employment 

relationship. 

 

Section 1.7.  Policy Against Harassment.   

 

A. Purpose of Policy.  The Town is committed to providing a workplace free 

of unlawful harassment.  This includes sexual harassment (which includes harassment based on 

gender, gender identity, pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions), as well as 

harassment based on such factors as race, color, creed, religion, national origin, citizenship, 

ancestry, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital 

status, sexual orientation, domestic partner status, family care or medical leave status, veteran 

status, or any other basis protected by federal, state, or local laws.  The Town strongly disapproves 

of and will not tolerate harassment of employees by managers, supervisors, or co-workers.  

Similarly, the Town will not tolerate harassment by its employees of those with whom the Town 

employees have a business, service, or professional relationship.  The Town also will attempt to 

protect employees from harassment by non-employees in the workplace.   

 

B. Harassment Defined.  Harassment includes verbal, physical, and visual 

conduct that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile working environment or that interferes 

with an employee’s work performance.  Such conduct constitutes harassment when (1) submission 

to the conduct is made either an explicit or implicit condition of employment; (2) submission or 

rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment decision; or (3) the harassment 

30



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 6 

 

interferes with an employee’s work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 

work environment.   

 

Harassing conduct can take many forms and may include, but is not limited to, the 

following (when based upon an employee’s protected status as noted above): slurs, jokes, 

statements, gestures, assault, impeding or blocking another’s movement or otherwise physically 

interfering with normal work, pictures, drawings, or cartoons, violating someone’s “personal 

space,” foul or obscene language, leering, stalking, staring, unwanted or offensive letters or poems, 

offensive email or voicemail messages.   

 

Sexually harassing conduct in particular may include all of these prohibited actions, 

as well as other unwelcome conduct, such as requests for sexual favors, conversation containing 

sexual comments, and other unwelcome sexual advances.  Sexually harassing conduct can be by a 

person of either the same or opposite sex.   

 

C. Reporting and Investigating Harassing Conduct.  Any incidents of 

harassment, including work-related harassment by any Town personnel or any other person, should 

be reported immediately to the employee’s supervisor or to the General Manager.  Supervisors and 

managers who receive complaints or who observe harassing conduct should immediately inform 

the General Manager.  The Town emphasizes that an employee is not required to complain first to 

his or her supervisor if that supervisor is the individual who is harassing the employee.  If it is 

desired to make a complaint about the General Manager, the employee may report directly to the 

President of the Board.   

 

Every reported complaint of harassment will be investigated thoroughly and 

promptly.  The investigation will be handled in as confidential a manner as possible consistent 

with a full, fair, and proper investigation.   

 

In addition to notifying the Town about harassment or retaliation complaints, 

affected employees may also direct their complaints to the California Department of Fair 

Employment and Housing (“DFEH”), which has the authority to conduct investigations of the 

facts.  The deadline for filing complaints with the DFEH is one year from the date of the alleged 

unlawful conduct.  If the DFEH believes that a complaint is valid and settlement efforts fail, the 

DFEH may seek an administrative hearing before the California Fair Employment and Housing 

Commission (“FEHC”) or file a lawsuit in court.  Both the FEHC and the courts have the authority 

to award monetary and non-monetary relief in meritorious cases.  Employees can contact the 

nearest DFEH office or the FEHC at the locations listed in the Town’s DFEH poster or by checking 

the State Government listings in the local telephone directory.   

 

D. Corrective Action.  The Town will not tolerate retaliation against any 

employee for making a good faith complaint of harassment or for cooperating in an investigation.  

If harassment or retaliation is established, the Town will take corrective action.  Corrective action 

may include, for example: training, referral to counseling, or disciplinary action ranging from a 

verbal or written warning to termination of employment, depending on the circumstances.   

 

Section 1.8.  Applicability.  This Personnel Manual applies to all employees of the Town, 

except where inconsistent with a written contract of employment approved by the Board. 

31



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 7 

 

ARTICLE 2 

EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

 

Section 2.1.  Employee Classifications.  Employee classifications are as follows: 

 

A. Regular Full-Time Employees.  An employee who is regularly scheduled to 

work not less than thirty (30) hours per week for a period of indefinite duration is referred to as a 

regular full-time employee.  A regular full-time employee is eligible for the benefits described in 

this Manual. 

 

B. Regular Part-Time Employees.  An employee who is regularly scheduled to 

work less than thirty (30) hours per week for a period of indefinite duration is referred to as a 

regular part-time employee.  Regular part-time employees are eligible for benefits only as 

specifically described in this Manual. 

 

C. Part Time, Seasonal, and Temporary Employees.  Part Time, Seasonal, and 

Temporary Employees (“PST Employees”) are persons hired to work on special projects or 

assignments with the understanding that such work will be completed within a specified period of 

time.  When the need arises, the Town may hire employees for a temporary period or contract out 

and may use a temporary staffing contract service or agency independent of the Town.  PST 

Employees do not become regular employees as a result of the passage of time.  PST Employees 

are not eligible for the benefits described in this Manual. 

 

D. “Full-Time Temporary” Employees.  “Full-Time Temporary” employees, 

at the time of employment, are expected to work one year or longer. 

 

E. Exempt/Nonexempt Employees.  Exempt employees are those employees 

who are exempt from earning overtime compensation; nonexempt employees are those employees 

eligible for overtime compensation in accordance with the provisions of applicable wage and hour 

laws.  Overtime compensation requirements are set forth in the Section 4 of this Manual entitled 

“Hours of Work, Overtime, and Pay Day”.  The employment positions of the General Manager, 

Assistant General Manager, Finance Manager, Parks and Landscape Manager, and Water and 

Wastewater Manager are exempt.  Other positions may or may not be exempt, and the status of 

the employee in that position will be established at the time of hiring, depending on the duties and 

responsibilities of the position. 

 

F. Hiring Powers.  The General Manager and Legal Counsel are hired by and 

serve at the pleasure of the Board.  All other employees of the Town are hired by and serve at the 

pleasure of the General Manager, subject to this Manual and Board approval of the authorized 

position schedule.  The authorized position schedule is located within the Town’s annual budget. 

 

Section 2.2.  Employee Benefits.   Regular Full-Time Employees will receive the following 

benefits: 

 

A. Medical Benefit.  The Town provides medical coverage to its eligible 

employees and their dependents.  Contact Human Resources for available plans and details. 

 

32



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 8 

 

B. Ancillary Benefits.  The Town provides vision, dental and supplemental life 

insurance to eligible employees and their dependents.  Life insurance and Employee Assistance 

Program is provided to eligible employees.  Contact Human Resources for available plans and 

details. 

 

C. Additional Benefits at Employee Cost and Election.  At employee expense, 

the Town makes available AFLAC insurance, Flexible Spending Account and 457b retirement. If 

an employee declines medical insurance the Town will contribute $250 per month into the 

employee’s 457b account (this is not subject to vesting).   Contact Human Resources for details.  

 

D. 457b Retirement.  An employee may participate in the Town’s 457b 

retirement plan.   Annually, the Town may authorize an employee contribution match up to a 

predetermined amount.   Employees after completion of their first year of employment will vest 

33% in the Town match, vest 66% after completion of year two, and be fully vested in the Town 

match after completion of three years of employment.   Not subject to match is the Town’s 

contribution of $250 in lieu of medical insurance.    Contact Human Resources for details. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 9 

 

ARTICLE 3  

HOLIDAYS AND TIME OFF 

 

Section 3.1.  Holidays.  The Town observes the following holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day, January 1st 

President’s Birthday, the third Monday in February 

Memorial Day, the last Monday of May 

Independence Day, July 4th  

Labor Day, the first Monday in September 

Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday of November 

Friday Following Thanksgiving, the fourth Friday of November 

Christmas Eve, December 24th  

Christmas Day, December 25th  

Winter Closure* (12/26 – 12/31) 

Floating Holiday 

 

* The Winter Closure are those four weekdays beginning December 26 up to and including 

December 31st of each year. Employees are required to take one of the following during the 

Closure: administrative time, floating holiday or vacation day.   The Winter Closure only applies 

to non-essential personnel. 

 

A. Eligibility.  Unless otherwise provided in this policy, all regular full-time 

employees will receive holiday time off with pay at their normal base rate unless otherwise 

provided in this Manual.  Part-Time Seasonal Temporary Employees are not eligible for paid 

holiday benefits with the exception of a “Full-Time Temporary” employee who, at the time of 

employment, is expected to work for one year or longer will also receive paid holiday benefits.  

Moreover, all employees are ineligible for holiday benefits while they are on leave of absence.   

 

B. Holidays and Weekends.  Holidays are to be taken on the day they occur.  

Holidays which fall on Saturday will be observed the preceding Friday, and those which fall on 

Sunday will be observed the following Monday. Holidays that occur during an eligible employee’s 

vacation will not be counted as vacation days taken.   

 

C. Pay In Lieu of Time Off.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, require 

some or all employees to work on Town-observed holidays, in which case the Town will provide 

pay in lieu of time off. 

 

Section 3.2.  Vacation Policy.  The Town provides vacation benefits to eligible employees 

to enable them to take paid time off for rest and recreation.  The Town believes this time is valuable 

for employees in order to enhance their productivity and to make their work experience with the 

Town personally satisfying. 

 

A. Vacation Accrual.  All regular full-time employees, whether exempt or 

nonexempt, are eligible to accrue vacation benefits based on their continuous service, measured 

from the date of hire.  A “Full-Time Temporary” employee, who, at the time of employment, is 

expected to work one year or longer, is also eligible to accrue vacation benefits.  “Continuous 

34



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 10 

 

length of service” is defined as service that is uninterrupted by termination of employment and 

subsequent rehire by the Town or a break in service that has been bridged.  No more than 5 days 

of vacation may be taken during the first year of service, unless otherwise permitted by the General 

Manager.  Vacation accrues according to the following schedule: 

 

 

Years of Continuous Service 

 

Vacation Accrual 

 

  

Date of hire through fifth year 

 

10/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 10 days (80 hours) per year. 

Sixth year through tenth year 

 

15/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 15 (120 hours) days per year. 

Eleventh year and thereafter 

 

20/12 of one day for each full month worked up 

to a maximum of 20 (160 hours) days per year. 

  

B. PST Employees.  Part-Time Seasonal Temporary employees do not accrue 

vacation benefits, with the exception that a “Full-Time Temporary” employee who, at the time of 

employment, is expected to work for one year or longer will also receive paid vacation benefits. 

 

C. Maximum Accrual.  Vacation accruals may not exceed 2 times an 

employee’s current annual entitlement (e.g., Maximum Accrual: 40 days for an employee with 

more than ten years of service.  Once this maximum is reached, all further accruals of vacation 

will cease.  Vacation accruals will recommence after the employee has taken vacation and his or 

her accrued hours have dropped below the maximum. 

 

D. Pay in Lieu of Vacation.  No employee will receive pay in lieu of vacation 

except on the termination of his or her employment, as described in Paragraph F, below, unless 

the employee has deferred his or her vacation at the Town’s request. 

 

E. Vacation Accrual During Periods of Leaves of Absence.  Employees do not 

accrue vacation during an unpaid leave of absence.  Vacation accruals recommence when the 

employee returns to work from an unpaid leave of absence.  Employees will continue to accrue 

vacation during paid leaves of absence or while on disability salary continuation.   

 

F. Vacation Pay on Termination.  On termination of employment, employees 

are paid all accrued but unused vacation through their last day worked at their base rate of pay at 

the time of termination. 

 

G. Vacation Approval.  All vacations must be approved in advance by the 

employee’s immediate supervisor. 

 

H. Vacation Scheduling.  Scheduling of vacations is to be done in a manner 

consistent with the Town’s operational requirements.  Vacation requests should be submitted by 

employees to their immediate supervisor for approval at least four (4) weeks prior to the 

commencement of a vacation period.  This requirement may be waived in writing at the discretion 

35



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 11 

 

of the General Manager.  Vacation requests may be disapproved or rescheduled to accommodate 

the Town’s operational requirements. 

 

I. Vacation Advances.  An employee is not permitted to borrow on future 

accrual of vacation benefits.  If an employee has used any vacation days before they have been 

accrued and their employment with the Town is then separated, the overdrawn amount must be 

repaid to the Town upon separation.  

 

J. Holidays Occurring During Vacation.  If an observed Town holiday (see 

Section 3.1) occurs during an employee’s scheduled vacation, no deduction from accrued vacation 

will be made for the holiday.  An employee may add to his or her vacation period by using the 

holiday in place of accrued vacation time. 

 

K.  Administrative Time Off.  Notwithstanding any other portion of this 

Manual, it is recognized that exempt employees do not receive overtime compensation, and may 

work irregular hours, and may not be able to take vacation when desired.  Accordingly, the General 

Manager shall be entitled to receive eighty (80) hours annually of paid administrative leave in 

addition to any leave otherwise authorized in the General Manager’s employment contract.  All 

other exempt employees shall be entitled to receive sixty (60) hours of paid administrative leave 

each fixed year.  Administrative leave is not, however, a vested or earned form of compensation.  

Any administrative time unused at the end of the year shall be forfeited, and it shall not be 

compensated for upon termination.  

 

Section 3.3.  Milestone Policy – Service Recognition.  The purpose of the milestone policy 

is to recognize and reward all regular full-time employees for their continued service to the Town. 

 

A. Milestone Years. Milestone years are in 5-year increments beginning with 

an employee’s tenth (10th) year of continuous service.  “Continuous service” is service that is 

uninterrupted by termination of employment and subsequent rehire by the Town or a break in 

service that has been bridged.  Milestone anniversary years are 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35, 40 & 45. 

 

B. Bonus Leave.  Bonus Leave under this policy is 40 hours of additional paid 

time off and is granted in a lump sum (rather than accrued) on the employee’s milestone year 

anniversary date.  Bonus Leave is awarded only in the milestone year, beginning with year 10, and 

employees will not receive additional Bonus Leave until reaching the next milestone. 

 

C. Use of Bonus Leave and Maximum Award.  All Bonus Leave must be taken 

within one year of posting and must be used (deducted) prior to using vacation or administrative 

time off.  Requests to take Bonus Leave must be made in the same manner as vacation scheduling.  

Bonus Leave may not be forfeited once awarded, but failure to use all Bonus Leave hours within 

the year will subject an employee to discipline, unless carryover has been approved in writing by 

the General Manager. 

 

D. Pay in Lieu of Bonus Leave.  No employee will receive pay in lieu of Bonus 

Leave except on termination of employment, in which case the employee will receive all awarded 

36



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 12 

 

but unused Bonus Leave through their last day worked at their base rate of pay at the time of 

termination. 

 

Section 3.4.  Sick Leave.  In order to help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by 

accident or illness, the Town has established paid sick leave. 

 

A. Eligibility.  All regular full-time employees are eligible for 3.08 hours of 

sick leave each pay period, or ten (10) days per year.  All part-time, seasonal and temporary 

employees who works in California for 30 or more days within a year from the beginning of 

employment, is entitled to paid sick leave, as stipulated in Section D, Accrual, below.  

 

B. Use.  Sick leave may be taken for a personal illness, an emergency, a 

disability, or for a family care or medical leave as described in the Town’s “Leaves of Absence” 

policy (Section 3.5).  Eligible employees may also use sick leave for diagnosis, care, or treatment 

of an existing health condition of, or preventative care for a child, parent, spouse, domestic partner, 

stepparent, stepchildren, in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee.  For an employee 

who is the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the employee may use sick 

leave for the purposes described in subdivision (c) of Section 230 and subdivision (a) of Section 

230.1 of the California Labor Code.  Additionally, hours missed for medical and dental 

appointments will be treated as sick leave.  Sick leave must be taken by eligible employees in 

increments of at least one hour.  The Town retains the right to request verification from a licensed 

health care provider for all absences due to illness or disability.  Sick pay may be withheld if the 

employee does not provide a satisfactory verification. 

 

C. Compensation for Sick Leave.  Eligible employees will receive pay at their 

normal base rate for any sick leave taken.  No employee will receive pay in lieu of sick leave, 

except as provided by Section 3.4.F, and employees will not be paid for any accrued but unused 

sick leave upon termination of employment.  If an employee separates and is rehired within one 

year, the employee is entitled to have his or her previously accrued and unused sick leave reinstated 

upon rehiring.   

 

D. Accrual of Sick Leave.  Regular full-time employees accrue 3.08 hours of 

sick leave per pay period.  Employees, including part-time, seasonal and temporary employees, 

will earn at least one hour of paid leave for every 30 hours worked, but not more than 24 hours in 

a calendar year. Accrual begins on the first day of employment.  Eligible employees may carry 

over accrued but unused sick leave from one calendar year to the next.  However, sick leave may 

only be accumulated up to a total of 160 hours for regular full-time employees and 48 hours for 

part-time, seasonal and temporary employees.  Employees will not accrue sick leave during any 

unpaid leave of absence. 

 

E. Approval.  Whenever possible (e.g., for a scheduled doctor’s or dentist’s 

appointment), employees must seek approval from their immediate supervisor prior to taking their 

sick leave.  Otherwise, the employees must notify their immediate supervisor as soon as practicable 

and, in no event, later than one hour after their scheduled starting time. 

 

F. Coordination of Sick Leave Benefits with Other Benefits.  The Town will 

pay sick-leave benefits to an eligible employee during the normal three-day waiting period before 

37



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 13 

 

the employee is paid workers’ compensation benefits pursuant to the applicable state or federal 

law governing the industrial injury or illness.  Similarly, the Town will pay sick-leave benefits 

during the normal seven-day waiting period before the eligible employee is paid benefits from the 

State Disability Insurance (SDI) program or another insured unemployment disability plan.  

Following the three-day and seven-day waiting periods specified above, an employee will continue 

to receive accrued sick pay, less the disability benefits actually received or the disability benefits 

that would have been received had the employee made timely application to the appropriate 

agency.   

 

G. Sick Leave Incentive Program.  The purpose of the Sick Leave Incentive 

program is to discourage sick leave abuse and absenteeism and provide incentive to employees to 

accumulate sick leave for when it may be needed for an extended illness for themselves or to 

provide care for a family member.   Regular full-time employees who have been continuously 

employed with the Town for at least one full payroll year, may elect annually during the first week 

of November to exchange sick leave hours for its cash equivalent according to the following 

schedule: 

 

SICK LEAVE USAGE NOV 1 THRU OCT 31 CASH CONVERSION 

Less than 8 hours 16 hours 

Less than 16 hours 12 hours 

Less than 24 hours 08 hours 

Less than 32 hours 04 hours 

32 Hours or More 00 hours 

 

Cash conversion to be paid on or before December 15th at the employee’s base rate of pay on 

November 1st.   

 

Section 3.5.  Leaves of Absence. 

 

 Introduction. The Town provides (1) family care, medical, and military family leave for up 

to 12 or 26 weeks per year, depending on the reason, see section II(D), in accordance with 

California’s Family Rights Act (“CFRA”) and the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 

as amended (“FMLA”); (2) pregnancy leave for up to four months in accordance with the 

California Fair Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”); (3) disability leave as required to 

reasonably accommodate employees with a workplace injury or a qualified disability under the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) or the FEHA; and (4) leave for other legally required 

absences as set forth below.  Employees having any questions regarding this policy should contact 

the General Manager.   

 

A. Family Care, Medical and Military Family Leave.   

 

(1) Eligibility.  To be eligible for family care, medical, and military 

family leave, an employee must (1) have worked for the Town for at least twelve months prior to 

the date on which the leave is to commence; and (2) have worked at least 1,250 hours in the twelve 

(12) months preceding the leave.   

 

38



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 14 

 

 An employee returning from fulfilling his or her National Guard or Reserve 

military obligation will be credited with the hours of service that would have been performed but 

for the period of military service in determining the 1,250 hours of service.   

 

 In the case of a pregnancy disability or other legally protected disability or 

medical condition or work-related injury, an employee may not need to satisfy all of the above 

requirements.  In such circumstances, the employee should contact a Human Resources 

professional for clarification about his or her rights for other types of leave.   

 

(2) Permissible Uses of Family Care, and Medical Military Leave.   

 

   “Family care and medical leave” may be requested for (1) the birth or 

adoption of an employee’s child; (2) the placement of a foster child with the employee; or (3) the 

serious health condition of an employee’s child, registered domestic partner, spouse, or parent; or 

(4) an employee’s own serious health condition.   

 

 A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or 

mental condition that involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing 

treatment by a health care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from 

performing the functions of the employee’s job, or prevents the qualified family member from 

participating in school or other daily activities.   

 

 Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be 

met by a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days combined with at least 

two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity 

due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition.  Other conditions may meet the 

definition of continuing treatment.   

 

   “Military exigency leave” may be requested when there is a qualifying 

military exigency as defined by the U.S.  Department of Labor arising out of the fact that an 

employee’s spouse, child, or parent is on active duty (or has been notified of an impending call or 

order to active duty) in the Armed Forces.  Qualifying military exigencies include the following:  

 

(a) Short-notice deployment where the employee may take leave 

to attend any issue that arises from the fact that a covered military member is notified of an 

impending call or order to active duty seven or less calendar days prior to the date of deployment.  

Leave taken for this purpose can be used for a period of seven calendar days beginning on the 

date the covered service member receives the notification.   

 

(b) Military events and related activities where the employee 

may take leave to attend to any official ceremonies, programs or events related to the call to active 

duty and to attend to family support, assistance programs, or informational briefings related to 

the call to active duty.   

 

(c) Childcare and school activities where the employee may 

take leave to arrange for alternative childcare or to provide childcare on an urgent, immediate 

need basis when the need arises from the call to active duty, to enroll or transfer a child to a new 

39



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 15 

 

school, to attend meetings with school or daycare facility staff regarding disciplinary measures, 

parent-teacher conferences, or meetings with school counselors.   

 

(d) Financial and legal arrangements where the employee may 

take leave to make or update financial or legal arrangements related to the covered service 

member’s absence, such as preparing powers of attorney, wills, transferring bank accounts, and 

the like, or appearing or acting on behalf of the absent service member in matters related to 

military benefits.   

 

(e) Counseling where the employee may take leave to attend 

counseling, the need for which arises from the call to active duty of the covered service member.   

 

(f) Rest and recuperation where the employee may take up to 

five days of leave to spend time with a covered service member each time the service member is 

on short-term rest and recuperation leave during the period of deployment.   

 

(g) Post-deployment activities where the employee may take 

leave for a period of up to 90 days following the termination of the deployment to attend arrival 

ceremonies, reintegration briefings and events, and other official ceremonies or programs 

provided by the military, or to address issues that arise out of the death of a covered service 

member.   

 

(h) Additional activities where the employee may take leave to 

address other events that arise out of the call to active duty as the Town and the employee may 

agree as to both timing and duration.   

 

   “Military caregiver leave” may be requested to care for a covered service 

member if the employee is the covered service member’s spouse, child, parent, or next of kin.  For 

purposes of this leave, a covered service member is a current member of the Armed Forces, 

including a member of the National Guard or Reserves who is undergoing medical treatment, 

recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary 

disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness, or a veteran who is undergoing medical 

treatment, recuperation, or therapy, for a serious injury or illness who was a member of the Armed 

Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves) at any time during the five years 

preceding the date on which the veteran undergoes medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy.   

 

(3) Substitution of Paid Leave.  Employees are required to substitute 

accrued vacation time and other paid leave (except sick leave) for all family care, medical leaves, 

and military leaves.  Employees are required to substitute sick leave only for the employee’s own 

medical leaves.  Employees may elect to substitute sick leave to attend to an illness of a child, 

parent, spouse or domestic partner of the employee or for other types of family care leave.  

 

(4) Amount of Leave.   

 

(a) Family Care, Medical, and Military Caregiver Leave.  

Provided all the conditions of this policy are met, an employee may take a maximum of 12 weeks 

40



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 16 

 

of family care, medical, and military exigency leave in a rolling 12-month period measured 

backwards from the date the employee’s leave commences.   

 

 Employees who are unable to work due to pregnancy disability will 

be granted the greater of 12 weeks leave or the amount of leave to which the employee may be 

entitled under California state law for a pregnancy-related disability or in connection with 

childbirth.  Family care leaves for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child must be 

concluded within one year of the birth, adoption, or placement.   

 

(b) Military Caregiver Leave.  Provided all the conditions of this 

policy are met, an employee may take a maximum of 26 weeks of military caregiver leave in a 

single 12-month period, inclusive of the time the employee takes for a family care, medical, or 

military exigency leave during that period.  This 12-month period will be measured forward from 

the first day leave is taken.   

 

 Spouses who are both employed by the Town may take a maximum 

combined total of 26 weeks in the 12-month period for the care of the service member and the 

birth, adoption, or foster care of their child or to care for an ill parent, provided that no more than 

12 weeks of this combined 26-week period may be taken for reasons other than to care for the 

service member.   

 

(c) Intermittent Leave.  Medical leave for the employee’s own 

serious health condition, family care leave for the serious health condition of the employee’s 

spouse, parent, or child, and military caregiver leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced 

schedule when medically necessary.  Where the intermittent or reduced schedule leave is for 

planned medical treatment, the employee must make an attempt to schedule the treatment so as 

not to disrupt unduly the Town’s operations.  Where the family care leave is to be taken in 

connection with the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child, the minimum duration for each 

period of leave is two weeks, except that the employee may request leave of less than two weeks 

duration on any two occasions.  Military exigency leave also may be taken intermittently or on a 

reduced schedule.   

 

(5) Leave’s Effect on Pay.  Except to the extent that other paid leave is 

substituted for family care, medical, and military family leave, leave under the FMLA and the 

CFRA is unpaid.  However, employees may be entitled to California State Disability Insurance 

(“SDI”).  Employees also may be entitled to Paid Family Leave (“PFL”) for up to six (6) weeks in 

any twelve-month period during leaves to care for qualifying family members.  PFL provides a 

partial wage replacement for absences from work to care for a seriously ill or injured family 

member or for bonding with a minor child within one year of the birth or placement of the child in 

connection with foster care or adoption.  Employee contributions provide funding for this program.  

PFL is administered like SDI by the California Employment Development Department.  PFL must 

be taken concurrently with family care leave and does not entitle an employee to take any 

additional time off.  In addition, an employee must use up to two weeks of any accrued but unused 

vacation before the employee will be eligible to receive PFL.   

 

(6) Leave’s Effect on Benefits.  During an employee’s family care, 

medical, and military family leave, the Town will continue to pay for the employee’s participation 

41



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 17 

 

in the Town’s group health plans, if any, to the same extent and under the same terms and 

conditions as would apply had the employee not taken leave.  Thus, the employee must continue 

to pay his or her share of the health plan premiums during the leave.  If the employee substitutes 

paid leave for the unpaid leave, such payments will be deducted from the employee’s pay through 

the regular payroll deductions.  Otherwise, the employee must make arrangements with the Town 

for the payment of such premiums.  All other benefits will be governed in accordance with the 

terms of each benefit plan and are the sole responsibility of the employee.   

 

  If the employee fails to pay his or her share of the premiums during leave, 

or if the employee fails to return from the leave at the expiration of 12 weeks (or 26 weeks in the 

case of a military caregiver leave) for a reason other than the recurrence, continuation, or onset of 

a serious health condition for which leave under this policy is allowed or other circumstances 

beyond the employee’s control, the Town can recover any health plan premiums paid by the Town 

on the employee’s behalf during any periods of the leave.   

 

  Employees on family care, medical, and military family leave accrue 

employment benefits such as sick leave, vacation benefits, or seniority only when paid leave is 

being substituted for unpaid leave and only if the employee would otherwise be entitled to such 

accrual.   

 

  Use of FMLA leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefit 

that accrued prior to the start of an employee’s leave.   

 

(7) Procedure for Requesting Family Care, Medical, and Military 

Family Leave.   

 

(a) Notice Requirements.  Employees must notify the Town of 

their request for family care, medical, military exigency, or military caregiver leave as soon as 

they are aware of the need for such leave.  For foreseeable family care, medical and military 

caregiver leave, the employee must provide 30 calendar days’ advance notice to the Town of the 

need for leave.  For events that are unforeseeable 30 days in advance, the employee must notify 

the Town as soon as is practicable and generally must comply with the Town’s normal call-in or 

notice procedures.  If the leave is requested in connection with a planned, non-emergency medical 

treatment, the employee must make an attempt to schedule such treatment so as to avoid unduly 

disrupting Town operations and may be requested to reschedule the treatment so as to minimize 

disruption of the Town’s business.   

 

 If an employee fails to provide the requisite 30-day advance notice 

for foreseeable events without any reasonable excuse for the delay, the Town reserves the right to 

delay the taking of the leave until at least 30 days after the date the employee provides notice of 

the need for family care or medical leave.   

 

 All requests for family care, medical, military exigency, and military 

caregiver leave should include enough information to make the Town aware that the employee 

needs qualifying leave, and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave, if known.  Sufficient 

information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions, the family member 

is unable to perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health 

42



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 18 

 

care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave.  Employees also 

must inform the Town if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously 

taken or certified.   

 

 Any requests for extensions of leave under this policy must be 

received as soon as is practicable and must include the revised anticipated date(s) and duration of 

the leave.  To the extent permitted by law, the Town reserves the right to deny requests for 

extensions or deny reinstatement to an employee who exceeds the leave amounts provided by this 

policy or fails to provide requested medical certification.  In addition, if you have a disability, you 

may be eligible for leave under the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) or state law.  For 

more detailed information on extended leaves, please contact the General Manager.   

 

 Once the Town is aware of the employee’s need for leave, it will 

inform the employee whether he or she is eligible under the FMLA.  If the employee is eligible, 

the notice will specify any additional information required as well as the employees’ rights and 

responsibilities.  If the employee is not eligible, the Town will provide a reason for the ineligibility.   

 

(b) Certification.  Any request for medical leave for an 

employee’s own serious health condition, for family care leave to care for a child, spouse, 

domestic partner or parent with a serious health condition or for a serious injury, or for military 

caregiver leave must be supported by medical certification from a health care provider.  For 

military caregiver leave, the employee must provide confirmation of a family relationship to the 

seriously ill or injured service member.  Employees generally must provide the required 

certification within 15 calendar days after the Town’s request for certification.  For foreseeable 

leaves, employees must provide the required medical certification before the leave begins.  When 

this is not possible, employees must provide the required certification within 15 calendar days 

after the Town’s request for certification, unless it is not practicable under the circumstances to 

do so, despite the employee’s good faith efforts.   

 

 The medical certification for a child, spouse, domestic partner or 

parent with a serious health condition or for the serious injury or illness of a qualifying service 

member must include (a) the date on which the serious health condition or serious injury or illness 

commenced; (b) the probable duration of the condition or injury or illness; (c) the health care 

provider’s estimate of the amount of time needed for family care; (d) the health care provider’s 

assurance that the health care condition or injury or illness warrants the participation of the 

employee to provide family care; and (e) in the case of intermittent or reduced schedule leave 

where medically necessary, the probable duration of such a schedule.   

 

 The medical certification for leave for the employee’s own serious 

health condition must include (a) the date on which the serious health condition commenced; (b) 

the probable duration of the condition; (c) a statement that, due to the serious health condition, the 

employee is unable to perform the essential functions of his or her position; and (d) in the case of 

intermittent leave or reduced schedule leave where medically necessary, the probable duration of 

such a schedule.  In addition, the certification may, at the employee’s option, identify the nature 

of the serious health condition involved.   

 

43



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 19 

 

 Failure to timely provide the required certification may result in the 

denial of foreseeable leave until such certification is provided.  In the case of unforeseeable leaves, 

failure to timely provide the required certification may result in a denial of the employee’s 

continued leave.  Where the employee’s need for leave due to the employee’s own serious health 

condition, or the serious health condition of the employee’s covered family member, lasts beyond 

a single leave year, the Town may require the employee to provide a new medical certification in 

each subsequent leave year.  Any request for an extension of the leave also must be supported by 

an updated medical certification.   

 

 The Town will provide forms for use in obtaining medical 

certifications that satisfy the requirements of this policy.  For military caregiver leave, the Town 

will accept Invitational Travel Orders (“ITOs”) or Invitational Travel Authorizations (“ITAs”) in 

lieu of its medical certification form.   

 

 It is the employee’s responsibility either to furnish a complete and 

sufficient certification or to furnish the health care provider providing the certification with any 

necessary authorization from the employee or the employee’s family member in order for the 

health care provider to release a complete and sufficient certification to the Town to support the 

employee’s leave request.   

 

 Where permitted by law, if the Town has reason to doubt the validity 

of the medical certification provided by the employee, the Town may require the employee to 

obtain a second opinion from a doctor of the Town’s choosing at the Town’s expense.  If the 

employee’s health care provider providing the original certification and the doctor providing the 

second opinion do not agree, the Town may require a third opinion, also at the Town’s expense, 

performed by a mutually agreeable doctor who will make a final determination.  It is the 

employee’s responsibility to furnish his or her health care provider with the necessary 

authorization for the disclosure of medical information to the doctor(s) who will provide the 

second and third opinions.  If the employee fails to provide the necessary authorization, the request 

for leave may be denied, in accordance with applicable law.   

 

(8) Designation of Protected Leave.  Once the Town has enough 

information to determine whether the leave is FMLA-qualifying, the Town will inform the 

employee if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and, if known at that time, the amount 

of leave that will be counted against the employee’s leave entitlement.  If the Town determines 

that the leave is not protected, the Town will notify the employee.   

 

(9) Recertification.  The employee taking leave because of his or her 

own serious medical condition or the serious medical condition of a family member may be 

required, except in cases of military caregiver leave, to provide the Town with recertification at 

appropriate intervals.  For purposes of recertification, the employer may request the same 

information as allowed by law for the original certification.  As part of that request, the Town may 

provide the health care provider with a record of the employee’s absence pattern to confirm 

whether such a pattern is consistent with the need for leave.  The employee must provide the 

requested recertification within 15 calendar days of such a request, unless it is not practicable to 

do so despite the employee’s diligent, good faith efforts.   

 

44



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 20 

 

(10) Return to Work Certification.  Where the leave is for the employee’s 

own serious health condition, the Town requires employees to provide medical certification that 

he or she is fit for duty and able to return to work.  The Town may delay restoring the employee 

to employment or terminate the employee without such certificate.   

 

(11) Leave’s Effect on Reinstatement.  Employees timely returning from 

a leave covered under this policy are entitled to reinstatement to the same or equivalent position 

consistent with applicable law.  The Town may deny reinstatement to employees who are among 

the highest paid ten percent of all employees employed by the Town within 75 miles of the 

employees’ worksite and whose reinstatement would cause substantial and grievous economic 

injury to the Town’s operations.  An employee has no greater right to reinstatement than if he or 

she had been continuously employed rather than on leave.  The Town will comply with all 

applicable laws pertaining to reinstatement of employees, including where required, the reasonable 

accommodation of employees who have been on an approved leave.   

 

 The Town complies with applicable family care, medical leave, and military 

family leave laws.  Under the FMLA it is unlawful for any employer to: interfere with, restrain, or 

deny the exercise of any right provided under the FMLA; or discharge or discriminate against any 

person for opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA or for involvement in any 

proceeding under or relating to the FMLA.  If an employer has done so, an employee may file a 

complaint with the U.S.  Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit against an employer.  

The FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination or supersede any 

state or local law or collective bargaining agreement that provides greater family or medical leave 

rights.  If you have questions or would like further clarification about your rights under the FMLA 

or other types of leave, please contact the Human Resources Department.   

 

B. Pregnancy-Related Disability Rights.   

 

(1) Leaves of Absence and Transfers.  Any employee who is disabled 

on account of pregnancy, childbirth, or related conditions may take a pregnancy-related disability 

leave for the period of actual disability of up to four months, in addition to any family care or 

medical leave to which the employee may be entitled under Section 3.5. A of this policy (Family 

Care, Medical and Military Family Leaves).  Pregnancy-related disability leaves may be taken 

intermittently, or on a reduced-hours schedule, as medically necessary.   

 

 Moreover, an employee is entitled to a reasonable accommodation for 

pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions if she so requests and provides the Town with 

medical certification from her health care provider.  In addition to other forms of reasonable 

accommodation, a pregnant employee is entitled to transfer temporarily to a less strenuous or 

hazardous position or to less hazardous or strenuous duties if she so requests, and if the transfer 

request is supported by proper medical certification, and if the transfer can be reasonably 

accommodated.   

 

(2) Substitution of Paid Leave for Pregnancy-Related Disability Leave.  

An employee taking pregnancy-related disability leave must substitute any available sick pay for 

her leave and may, at her option, substitute any accrued vacation time for her leave.  The 

45



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 21 

 

substitution of paid leave for pregnancy-related disability leave does not extend the total duration 

of the leave to which an employee is entitled.   

 

(3) Leave’s Effect on Benefits.  During an employee’s family care, 

medical, and military family leave, the Town will continue to pay for the employee’s participation 

in the Town’s group health plans, to the same extent and under the same terms and conditions as 

would apply had the employee not taken leave.  Thus, the employee must continue to pay his or 

her share of the health plan premiums during the leave.  If the employee substitutes paid leave for 

the unpaid leave, such payments will be deducted from the employee’s pay through the regular 

payroll deductions.  Otherwise, the employee must make arrangements with the Town for the 

payment of such premiums.  All other benefits will be governed in accordance with the terms of 

each benefit plan and are the sole responsibility of the employee.   

 

 The Town may recover from the employee the premium that the Town paid 

to maintain coverage for the employee under the group health plan if the employee fails to return 

from leave after the period of leave has expired and the employee’s failure to return is for a reason 

other than: (i) the employee is taking leave under the California Family Rights Act; (ii) the 

continuation, recurrence, or onset of a health condition that entitles the employee to leave for 

pregnancy disability or other circumstances beyond the employee’s control.   

 

 Employees on Pregnancy-Disability leave will accrue employment benefits, 

such as sick leave, vacation leave, and seniority only when paid leave is being substituted for 

unpaid leave and only if the employee would otherwise be entitled to such accrual.  Employee 

benefits may be continued during the unpaid portion of the Pregnancy-Disability leave according 

to the provisions of the Town’s various employee benefit plans.   

 

(4) Other Terms and Conditions of Leave.  The provisions of the 

Town’s Family Care, Medical and Military Family Leave policy regarding the leave’s effect on 

pay, notice requirements, medical certification requirements, and reinstatement also apply to all 

pregnancy-related disability leaves.  However, for pregnancy-related disabilities, there is no 

process for obtaining more than one medical opinion, and there is no reinstatement exception for 

key employees.  For the purpose of applying those provisions, an employee’s pregnancy-related 

disability is considered to be a serious health condition.   

 

C. Other Disability Leaves. 

   

In addition to medical or pregnancy-related disability leaves, may take a temporary disability leave 

of absence if necessary to reasonably accommodate a workplace injury or a disability under the 

ADA or the FEHA.  Any disability leave under this section will run concurrently with any medical 

leave to which the employee is entitled. Disability leaves under this section will be unpaid.   

  

 Employees taking disability leave must comply with the Family Care, Medical and 

Military Family Leave provisions regarding substitution of paid leaves, notice, and medical 

certification.  For the purpose of applying these provisions, a disability leave will be considered to 

be a medical leave.   

  

46



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 22 

 

 If a disability leave under this section extends beyond 12 weeks in a 12-month 

period, the employee will not be entitled to any continued employer contributions towards any 

employee benefit plan unless otherwise required by law.  An employee, however, may elect to 

continue participating in such benefit plans, at the employee’s own expense, to the extent permitted 

by such plans.   

 

 The duration of a leave under this section shall be consistent with applicable law, 

but in no event shall the leave extend past the date on which an employee becomes capable of 

performing the essential functions of his or her position, with or without reasonable 

accommodation.  For a full explanation of leave duration and reinstatement rights, employees 

should contact the General Manager.   

 

D. Other Leaves of Absence.   

 

  The Town also grants eligible employees leaves of absence for military leave, jury 

or witness duty, certain court appearances, appearances at school or daycare activities, emergency 

duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel, to vote in 

a statewide election, for bereavement leave, for leave related to domestic violence, crime victims 

leave, or leave for the donation of an organ or bone marrow.  Unless otherwise required by law or 

set forth herein, employees will not be paid for such leaves of absence.   

 

 Employees wishing to take a leave of absence for one of these reasons should refer 

to the procedures outlined below or contact the General Manager. 

 

(1) Military Leave of Absence.  The Town will grant employees a 

military leave of absence to the extent required by applicable federal and state law.   

(2) Military Spouse Leave.  At any time that it regularly employs 25 or 

more persons, or as otherwise required by applicable federal and state law, the Town will grant 

qualified California employees up to ten (10) days leave during that time in which the employee’s 

spouse or domestic partner is on leave from deployment in a combat zone with the active duty or 

reserve military or national guard during a period of military conflict.  Employees may use accrued 

vacation time to cover this absence.  If the employee has no accrued vacation, the employee must 

request time off without pay.   

 

 Qualifying employees are employees who work an average of 20 hours per 

week and have a spouse or domestic partner who is serving as (1) a member of the U.S.  Armed 

Forces and who has been deployed during a period of military conflict to an area designated as a 

combat theater or combat zone by the President of the United States or (2) a member of the Armed 

Forces Reserve Components or the National Guard and has been deployed during a period of 

military conflict.   

 

 Qualifying employees who wish to request this leave must provide the 

Town with a written request for such leave within two business days of receiving official notice 

that the military spouse or domestic partner will be on leave from deployment.  The employee 

must also provide written documentation to the Town certifying that the military member will be 

on military leave from deployment.   

 

47



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 23 

 

(3) Jury and Witness Duty.  The Town will provide employees time off 

to serve, as required by law, on a jury or grand jury if the employee provides reasonable advance 

notice.  The Town will also provide employees with time off to appear in court or other judicial 

proceedings as a witness to comply with a valid subpoena or other court order.  The Town will 

compensate employees up to five (5) days of service per calendar year. Any service under this 

Section exceeding five (5) days per calendar year will be unpaid.  However, Regular Full-Time 

exempt employees who work any portion of a workweek in which they also serve on jury duty or 

appear as a witness will receive their full salary for that workweek. Employees may elect to 

substitute accrued vacation during any unpaid leave due to jury duty or a witness appearance.  No 

overtime shall be paid under this Section.   

   

   Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 215(b) and Government Code 

Section 481.200, employees shall complete the Government Waiver Form that will stop the jury 

payment for days in which the Town compensates the employee for service.  If the Government 

Waiver Form is not available, any payment or fees received by the employee for service under this 

Section by the Court for days in which the Town compensates the employee for service shall be 

submitted to the District. 

   

 Employees are required to provide reasonable advance notice of the need 

for jury/witness leave.  Employees also are expected to report to work each day or portion of a day 

they are not performing jury/witness duty.   

 

(4) Leave to Attend Children’s School at Teacher’s Request.  The Town 

will grant employees who are parents or guardians of a pupil time off without pay to appear at their 

children’s school pursuant to a teacher’s request under Education Code section 48900.1, if the 

employee, prior to taking the time off, gives reasonable notice to the Town that he or she is 

requested to appear in the school. 

 

(5) Leave for Educational/Daycare Purposes.  At any time that it 

regularly employs twenty-five (25) or more persons, or as otherwise required by applicable federal 

and state law, the Town will grant employees time off without pay for up to forty (40) hours per 

calendar year, but no more than eight hours in any calendar month, to participate in the activities 

of schools or licensed child daycare facilities attended by their children.  Employees must 

substitute accrued vacation for purposes of a planned absence under this Section.   

 

 Employees wishing to take time off under this Section must provide their 

supervisors with reasonable notice of the planned absence.  If both parents of a child are employed 

by the Town at the same worksite, the request for time off under this Section will be granted to the 

first parent to provide notice of the need for time off.  The request from the second parent will be 

accommodated if possible.   

 

 The Town reserves the right to request that the employee furnish written 

verification from the school or daycare facility as proof that the employee participated in school 

or daycare activities on the specific date and at a particular time.  Failure to provide written 

verification is grounds for disciplinary action. 

 

48



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 24 

 

(6) Civil Air Patrol Leave.   An employees who is a volunteer member 

of the California Wing of the civilian auxiliary of the United States Air Force (Civil Air Patrol) 

and has been directed to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Wing of 

the Civil Air Patrol, are eligible for a leave of absence if he/she has been employed by the Town 

at least 90 days immediately preceding the commencement to his/her leave, An eligible employee 

may take up to 10 days per year. Leave is limited to three days on any one occasion but can be 

extended if authorized by the government entity that called for the mission and the Town agrees. 

The employee may request to use available vacation/PTO, floating holidays, or vacation days (paid 

time subject to your supervisor's approval). You need to give as much notice as possible to your 

supervisor of the start and end dates to your Civil Air Patrol leave. Certification from the proper 

Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility for the leave requested or taken is required.  

 

(7) Literacy Leave.  The Town of Discovery Bay will make reasonable 

accommodations for any employee who reveals a literacy problem and requests assistance in 

enrolling in an adult literacy program. Assistance to employees will also be given by either 

providing information on the location of local literacy programs or making arrangements for a job-

site visit by a special literacy education provider. Upon request, the use of vacation or paid leave 

may be granted for participation in a literacy program by the employee's supervisor. 

 

(8) Alcohol/Drug Rehabilitation Leave.  The Town of Discovery Bay 

will attempt to reasonably accommodate employees with chemical dependencies (drugs or 

alcohol), if they voluntarily wish to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation, unless the accommodation 

imposes an undue hardship on Town. The Town's support for treatment and rehabilitation does not 

obligate the Town to hire or employ any person who violates the Town's drug and alcohol abuse 

policy or who, because of current use of drugs or alcohol, is unable to perform his or her duties or 

cannot perform the duties in a manner that would not endanger his or her health or safety or the 

health or safety of others. 

 

(9) Volunteer Firefighter, Reserve Peace Officer, and Emergency 

Rescue Personnel.  Nonexempt employees will be granted time off without pay to perform 

emergency duties as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel.  

At any time that it regularly employs fifty (50) or more persons, or as otherwise required by 

applicable federal and state law, Town will grant employees who are volunteer firefighters a leave 

of up to 14 days per calendar year for fire or law enforcement training.  Exempt employees who 

work any portion of a workweek in which they also perform such emergency duties or training 

will receive their full salary for that workweek.  Otherwise, exempt employees will be granted 

time off without pay.  Employees may substitute vacation pay for any unpaid portion of leave to 

perform such emergency duties or training. 

 

(10) Voting Time Off.  Employees who do not have sufficient time 

outside of their regular working hours to vote in a statewide election may request time off to vote.  

If possible, employees should make their request at least two days in advance of the election.  Up 

to two hours of paid time off will be provided, at the beginning or end of the employee’s regular 

shift, whichever will allow the freest time for voting and the least time off work.   

 

(11) Bereavement Leave.  All employees who suffer a death in their 

immediate family may have a paid leave for three (3) scheduled work days for each death of an 

49



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 25 

 

immediate family member.  For purposes of this policy, an employee’s immediate family is 

defined to include the employee’s current spouse, domestic partner, child, parent, sibling, 

grandparent, grandchild of employee, or child, sibling, parent or grandchild of employee’s spouse 

or domestic partner.  Employees must take this leave within a seven (7) consecutive day period 

and will be paid only for days and hours they were scheduled to work.   

 

 If an employee requires more than three (3) days off for bereavement leave, 

the employee may request additional unpaid leave or may request the opportunity to use any 

accrued vacation time at the discretion of the General Manager. 

 

(12) Leave Related to Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault and/or 

Stalking.  The Town will grant unpaid time off to an employee who is a victim of domestic 

violence, a victim of sexual assault or a victim of stalking for the employee to obtain or attempt to 

obtain any relief, including a temporary restraining order, restraining order, or other injunctive 

relief, to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of the victim or his or her child.   

 

 At any time that it regularly employs twenty-five (25) or more persons, or 

as otherwise required by applicable federal and state law, the Town will also grant unpaid time off 

to an employee who has been the victim of domestic violence or sexual assault to attend court 

proceedings, to receive services from a domestic violence shelter, program or rape crisis center, 

counseling, medical attention, and for participation in safety planning programs.   

 

 The Town requires reasonable advance notice of the leave when feasible.  

If time off is taken due to an emergency, the employee must, within fifteen (15) days of the 

absence, provide the Town with certification of the need for the leave such as a police report, court 

order, documentation from a healthcare provider, victims advocate, or counselor.   

  

(13) Crime Victims’ Leave.  The Town will provide time off to an 

employee to attend judicial proceedings related to a crime, if that employee is a victim of crime, 

an immediate family member of a victim, a registered domestic partner of a victim, or the child of 

a registered domestic partner of a victim.  The Town requires that where feasible, in advance of 

taking leave, the employee provide it with a copy of the notice of each scheduled proceeding that 

is provided to the victim by the agency responsible for providing notice.  If advance notice is not 

possible, the employee is required to provide the Town with a copy of the notice within a 

reasonable time.   

 

(14) Leave for Organ and Bone Marrow Donation.  At any time that it 

regularly employs twenty-five (25) or more persons, or as otherwise required by applicable federal 

and state law, the Town will grant an employee the following paid leaves of absence for the 

purpose of organ or bone marrow donation:  

 

(a) A leave of absence of up to five (5) days in any one-year 

period for the purpose of donating the employee’s bone marrow to another person.   

 

(b) A leave of absence of up to thirty (30) days in any one-year 

period for the purpose of the employee donating his or her organ to another person.   

 

50



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 26 

 

  A leave of absence for the purpose of organ or bone marrow 

donation will be provided with pay, however, if an employee has unused sick or vacation time 

available, the employee is required to first use up to five days of paid sick or vacation time for a 

bone marrow donation and up to two weeks of sick or vacation time for organ donation.   

 

  In order to receive a leave of absence pursuant to this policy, the 

employee must provide written verification to the General Manager that he or she is an organ or 

bone marrow donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation of the organ or bone 

marrow.   

 

  Any leave taken for the donation of an organ or bone marrow will 

not constitute a break in service for purposes of the employee’s right to salary adjustments, sick 

leave, vacation, annual leave or seniority.  During any leave taken under this policy, the Town will 

maintain and pay for coverage under any group health plan, for the full duration of this leave.  

Leave provided under this policy may be taken in one or more periods.  Leave taken under this 

policy will not run concurrently with any leave taken pursuant to the federal Family and Medical 

Leave Act or the California Family Rights Act.   

 

  Upon expiration of a leave of absence authorized by this policy, the 

Town will restore the employee to the position held by the employee when the leave began or to a 

position with equivalent seniority status, employee benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions 

of employment.  The Town may decline to restore an employee because of reasons unrelated to 

the exercise of rights under this policy by the employee. 

 

Section 3.6.  Employment During Leave of Absence.  An employee on any leave under 

this section may not accept employment with any other employer without the General Manager’s 

written permission.  An employee who accepts such employment, without permission, will be 

deemed to have resigned from the employment at the Town.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 27 

 

ARTICLE 4 

HOURS OF WORK, OVERTIME, AND PAY DAY 

 

Section 4.1.  Hours of Work.  The Town’s office hours are generally from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., Monday through Friday.  However, employees will be assigned specific hours, shifts, and 

days of work, dependent upon the need of the department, by the General Manager or by the 

employee’s supervisor.  Due to the nature of Town operations, employees may be required to work 

shifts or hours, outside regular office hours.  The General Manager or the employee’s Supervisor 

may reschedule an employee’s hours, shifts, and days whenever necessary based upon the needs 

of the Town.  The General Manager is the final decision maker concerning employee work 

schedule. 

 

Section 4.2.  Meal and Rest Periods.    

 

A. Rest Periods.  The Town authorizes and permits nonexempt employees 

working at least three and one-half hours in a day to take a ten-minute, off-duty paid rest period 

for each four hours worked or major fraction thereof.  The 10 minutes do not include the reasonable 

time it takes to walk to and from a break area.  Employees who work up to six hours in a day may 

take a second rest period.  Employees who work more than 10 hours in a day may take a third rest 

period.  Employees should take their rest periods in the middle of each work period to the extent 

it is practicable to do so, and not combine them with meal periods or skip them to leave work early.   

 

Employees who feel they were not provided the opportunity to take all rest periods 

authorized and permitted under this policy should inform their supervisor or manager, and (if not 

corrected) Human Resources immediately. 

 

B. Meal Periods.  The Town provides nonexempt employees who work more 

than five hours in a day with an unpaid 30-minute, uninterrupted meal period starting no later than 

the end of the fifth hour of work.  The Town provides employees who work more than 10 hours in 

a day with a second unpaid 30-minute, uninterrupted meal period starting no later than the end of 

the 10th hour of work.  Employees who work no more than six hours in a day may waive the first 

meal period.  Employees who work no more than 12 hours in a day may waive the second meal 

period if they took their first meal periods.  Employees are entitled, encouraged, and expected to 

take all meal periods provided under this policy and not waived.  During meal periods, the Town 

will relieve employees of all duty and will not exercise control over employees’ activities.  

Employees are free to spend their meal period time as they choose (consistent with any other Town 

policies that may apply during off-duty time) and are free to leave the worksite.  No supervisor or 

manager may impede or discourage employees from taking meal periods provided under this 

policy.   

 

Supervisors may assign employee meal period times to ensure that Town operations 

are properly staffed during business hours. Employees who feel they were not provided a meal 

period that complies with this policy should inform their supervisor or manager, and (if not 

corrected) the General Manager immediately.   

  

Section 4.3.  Basic Pay Structure.  The Town has an established salary step schedule for 

each employee classification with a minimum and maximum pay range. Movement within the pay 

52



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 28 

 

range is based on discipline, performance and merit.  Typically, employees are evaluated on an 

annual basis and merit increases (not to exceed top step) are considered at that time. 

 

Section 4.4.  Overtime Pay.   

 

A. Overtime Definition and Rates of Pay.  All nonexempt employees who work 

more than forty (40) hours in one workweek will receive overtime pay computed as follows: 

 

(1) Overtime at the rate of 1 ½ times the employee’s regular rate of pay 

will be provided for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) in a single workday or forty (40) in 

any one workweek. 

 

(2) Overtime will be computed on actual minutes worked, adjusted to 

the nearest increment of 15 minutes.  Only those hours actually worked are added together to 

determine an employee’s overtime pay.  Compensated holidays, for example, are not hours worked 

and are therefore not counted in making overtime calculations. 

 

B. Workweek and Workday.  Unless otherwise provided, for purposes of 

calculating overtime each workweek begins on Sunday and each workday begins at 12:01 a.m.   

 

C. Pre-Authorization.  No nonexempt employee may work overtime without 

the express prior approval of his or her supervisor.   

 

D. Nonexempt Employees Prohibited from Working at Home.  Nonexempt 

employees are strictly prohibited from completing any work for the Town while at home and not 

during regularly scheduled working hours, unless express prior approval of the General Manager 

in writing is obtained. 

 

Section 4.5.  Other Types of Pay.   

 

A. Reporting Time Pay.  Nonexempt Regular Full-Time employees who report 

to work at the Town’s request, but are furnished less than half of their usual or scheduled day’s 

work, will be paid for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but not less than two hours’ pay or 

more than four hours’ pay at their regular rate, without regard to the number of hours they actually 

worked, unless the reasons for the lack of work are beyond the Town’s control.  Reporting time 

pay will not be paid to an employee on paid standby status who is called to perform assigned work 

at a time other than the employee’s scheduled reporting time.  Reporting time hours are not counted 

as “hours worked” for overtime purposes beyond the time in which work is actually performed.  

For example, if an employee who is scheduled to work an eight-hour shift is sent home after three 

hours, the employee will receive four hours’ pay for that day, but the fourth hour of reporting time 

pay will not be treated as time worked for overtime purposes. 

 

B. Callback Pay.  Any nonexempt Regular Full-Time employee who is called 

back to work for a second work period in any one workday and is furnished with less than two 

hours’ work is paid a minimum of two hours pay at the regular straight-time rate for the second 

work period, without regard to the number of hours actually worked, unless the reasons for lack 

of work are beyond the Town’s control. 

53



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 29 

 

C. Holiday Pay.  Nonexempt employees are paid their regular straight-time 

wages for holidays as set forth under Article 3 of this Manual.  To receive holiday pay, the 

employee must work the regularly scheduled workdays preceding and following the holiday, or 

receive prior approval from his or her Supervisor to take the time off.   

 

D. Pay Advances.  There will be no pay advances.   

 

Section 4.6.  Place and Time for Payment of Wages.   

 

A. Regular Pay Days.  Employees are paid biweekly, twenty-six (26) times 

annually.  Employees must complete their time cards in a timely manner in order to ensure that 

they are paid for all hours worked.  If a pay day falls on a holiday, paychecks will be distributed 

on the preceding workday.  For employees who are not on direct deposit, checks are distributed on 

the date assigned for payment.  If the employee is absent when the paycheck is distributed, the 

employee may claim the paycheck from his or her immediate supervisor when the employee 

returns.   Exempt employees must submit a time off request for any paid leave taken during the 

pay period. 

 

B. Payment on Resignation, Termination, or Completion of Assignment or 

Term.  If an employee resigns, his or her paycheck will be available on the final day of work, 

provided the employee has given at least 72 hours’ prior notice.  If an employee resigns without 

giving 72 hours’ notice, his or her paycheck will be made available within 72 hours after the 

employee gives notice of the resignation, unless the employee requests in writing that his or her 

final paycheck be mailed, in which case the Town will mail the final paycheck within three days 

after the employee gives notice.  Employees who are terminated involuntarily will be paid on the 

day of the discharge.  If an employee is hired for a specific assignment or otherwise has a 

defined term of employment, his or her paycheck will be available upon the completion of the 

assignment or employment term.  In all cases, employees’ final paychecks will include payment 

for all wages owed and any accrued but unused vacation time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 30 

 

ARTICLE 5 

RULES OF CONDUCT 

 

Section 5.1.  Open Door.  The Town has an Open Door Policy that encourages employee 

participation in decisions affecting them and their daily professional responsibilities.  Employees 

who have job-related concerns or complaints are encouraged to talk them over with their 

immediate supervisor or any other management representative with whom they feel comfortable.  

The Town believes that employee concerns are best addressed through this type of informal and 

open communication. 

 

Section 5.2.  Rules of Conduct, Discipline and Termination.   

 

A. Rules of Conduct.   

 

(1) Policy.  Employees are expected to observe certain standards of job 

performance and good conduct.  When performance or conduct does not meet Town standards, the 

Town may endeavor, when it deems appropriate, to provide the employee a reasonable opportunity 

to correct the deficiency.  If, however, the employee fails to make the correction, he or she will be 

subject to discipline.  Discipline can include termination.  

 

   Employees are expected to conduct themselves at all times in a manner 

which is professional, courteous and respectful to their coworkers, customers, vendors and public.  

The rules set forth below are intended to provide employees with fair notice of what is expected 

of them.  Necessarily, however, such rules cannot identify every type of unacceptable conduct and 

performance.  Therefore, employees should be aware that conduct not specifically listed below but 

which adversely affects or is otherwise detrimental to the interests of the Town, other employees 

or the public, may also result in disciplinary action.  The listing of these rules does not in any way 

abrogate or modify the at-will policy set forth in Section 1.6 of this Manual. 

 

(2) Job Performance.  Employees may be disciplined for poor job 

performance, including but not limited, to the following: 

 

(a) Unsatisfactory work quality or quantity; 

 

(b) Poor attitude (e.g. abrupt, rude, discourteous, unfriendly, 

passive/aggressive, negative, antagonistic, uncooperative, argumentative); 

 

(c) Poor interpersonal skills with coworkers and/or others;  

 

(d) Excessive absenteeism, tardiness, or abuse of rest break and 

meal period policies; 

 

(e) Failure to follow instructions or Town guidelines, policies 

and/or procedures; or 

 

(f) Failure to follow established safety regulations. 

 

55



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 31 

 

 

(3) Misconduct.  Employees may be disciplined for misconduct, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

 

(a) Insubordination; 

 

(b) Dishonesty; 

 

(c) Untruthfulness;   

 

(d) Theft or embezzlement; 

 

(e) Discourtesy; 

 

(f) Conduct unbecoming a District employee; 

 

(g) Unlawful conduct; 

 

(h) Unauthorized use, misuse or destruction of Town property 

or the property assigned to or owned by another. 

 

(i) Violating conflict of interest rules; 

 

(j) Accessing, disclosing or using confidential or proprietary 

information without authorization; 

 

(k) Falsifying or altering Town records, including the 

application for employment; 

 

(l) Interfering with the work performance of others; 

 

(m) Altercations, physical or verbal; 

 

(n) Harassing, including sexually harassing employees, 

customers, contractors, or others while acting within the scope of their employment; 

 

(o) Being under the influence of, manufacturing, dispensing, 

distributing, using, or possessing alcohol, cannabis (with or without prescription) or illegal or 

controlled substances on Town property or during the work day or while conducting Town 

business; 

 

(p) Gambling on Town premises or while conducting Town 

business; 

(q) Sleeping on the job or leaving your work location or 

worksite without authorization; 

 

56



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 32 

 

(r) Possessing a firearm or other dangerous weapon on Town 

property or while conducting Town business. 

 

(s) Being convicted of a crime that indicates unfitness for the 

job or raises a threat to the safety or well-being of the Town, its employees, customers, or 

property; 

 

(t) Failing to report to the Town, within five (5) days, any 

conviction under any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the work place; 

 

(u) Use of foul, abusive, or offensive language; or  

 

(v) Smoking in non-designated areas. 

 

(4) Attendance.  Attendance and punctuality are important to your 

success at the Town of Discovery Bay. You are expected to be conscientious about your attendance 

and punctuality at work. Regular and dependable attendance is an essential function of your job. 

If you are going to be unable to work, contact your supervisor at least 30 minutes in advance of 

your reporting time.   In addition to the general rules stated above, employees may be disciplined 

for failing to observe the following specific requirements relating to attendance: 

 

(a) Reporting to work on time, observing the rest break and meal 

period policies, and obtaining approval to leave work early; and 

 

(b) Notifying the supervisor in advance of anticipated tardiness 

or absence. 

 

B. Discipline 

 

Except as set forth below, discipline may take the form of verbal counselling, verbal 

warning, written reprimand, performance improvement plan (PIP), suspension without pay, pay 

reduction, demotion and termination.   The Town reserves the right to proceed directly to any 

disciplinary step it deems appropriate, including termination, for misconduct or performance 

deficiency, without resort to prior disciplinary steps.      

 

C. Termination 

 

(1) Voluntary Termination.  The Town will consider an employee to 

have voluntarily terminated his or her employment if an employee does any of the following: 

 

(a) Elects to resign from the Town; 

 

(b) Fails to return from an approved leave of absence on the date 

specified by the Town; or 

 

(c) Fails to report for work without notice to the Town for three 

(3) consecutive days. 

57



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 33 

 

(2) Involuntary Termination.  An employee may be terminated 

involuntarily for reasons that may include, but are not limited to, poor performance, misconduct, 

or other violations of the Town’s rules of conduct as set forth below.  Notwithstanding this list of 

rules, the Town reserves the right to discharge or demote any employee with or without cause and 

with or without prior notice. 

 

Section 5.3.  Exit Interview.  Employees who leave the Town for any reason may be asked 

to participate in an exit interview.  This interview is intended to permit terminating employees the 

opportunity to communicate their views regarding their work with the Town, including job duties, 

job training, job supervision, and job benefits.  At the time of the interview, employees are 

expected to return all Town-furnished property, such as uniforms, tools, equipment, I.D.  cards, 

keys, credit cards, documents, and manuals.  Arrangements for clearing any outstanding debts with 

the Town and for receiving final pay also will be made at this time.   

 

Section 5.4.  Employment at Will.  Nothing in this Personnel Manual is intended to alter 

the at-will status of employment with the Town.  Either you or the Town may terminate the 

employment relationship at any time with or without cause and with or without prior notice.  The 

Town reserves the right to terminate any employment relationship, to demote, or to otherwise 

discipline an employee without resort to the above disciplinary procedures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 34 

 

ARTICLE 6 

WORK REGULATIONS 

 

Section 6.1.  Personnel Records.   

 

A. Personnel Files.  The information in an employee’s personnel file is 

permanent and confidential and must be kept up to date.  Employees should inform the Personnel 

Manager immediately whenever there are changes in personal data such as address, telephone 

number, marital status, number of dependents, and person(s) to notify in case of emergency.   

 

Employees have the right to inspect their personnel files at reasonable times and on 

reasonable notice.  In addition, employees have the right to request copies of all employment-

related documents that they have signed.  An employee may inspect only his or her own personnel 

file and only in the presence of a supervisor or the General Manager.  Personnel files are the 

property of the Town and may not be removed from the Town’s premises without written 

authorization from the General Manager.   

 

B. Payroll Records.  Employees also have the right to inspect and copy certain 

Town payroll records regarding their compensation, and deductions from their compensation, upon 

reasonable request to the Town.  Employees wishing to review or copy payroll records should 

notify the General Manager.   

 

Section 6.2.  Personal Telephone Calls.  Personal telephone calls are to be limited to 

essential matters and kept as brief as possible.  Continued excessive use of phones for personal 

matters is subject to disciplinary action. 

 

Section 6.3.  Smoking.  The Town prohibits smoking or using tobacco products, smokeless 

(chewing) tobacco products, e-cigarettes and other nicotine-delivery devices, such as vaporizers, 

in the workplace.  Smoking is prohibited within the confines of any office or vehicle.  Smoking 

will be permitted out of doors only, and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.  

All cigarettes are to be extinguished and disposed of prior to entering any office or vehicle.  

Employees violating this policy will be subject to disciplinary action. 

 

Section 6.4.  Dress and Grooming Standards.  The Town considers the presentation of the 

Town image to its clients, suppliers, and the public at large to be extremely important.  

Accordingly, it is expected that all employees dress in a manner consistent with proper hygiene, 

safety, and taste.  Employees whose jobs require them to come in contact with clients, customers, 

suppliers, or the public are expected to wear apparel the Town considers appropriate for dealing 

with the public.  Each employee is expected to be neat and clean in appearance, with clean clothing 

or clean uniform and good personal hygiene.  Clothing should be appropriate for the particular 

work area and type of work performed. 

 

Section 6.5.  Lactation Room.  The Town provides a reasonable amount of time to 

accommodate employees desiring to express breast milk for the employee’s infant child.   

Employees who desire to express milk in private, are to contact the General Manager so that 

arrangements can be made to provide a room, other than a bathroom, near the employee’s work 

59



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 35 

 

area, for the employee to express milk. During such time, the room location will stay private to the 

employee and free from intrusion.  

 

Section 6.6.  Employment of Relatives.  The Town will only allow for the employment of 

relatives of existing employees under specific situations, as identified below and as set forth in this 

section and only with the advanced written approval of the General Manager.  Relatives of present 

employees may be hired by the Town only if (1) the individuals concerned will not work in a direct 

supervisory relationship with one another, (2) the individuals concerned will not work in the same 

work unit or area or under the same direct supervisor, and (3) the employment will not pose 

difficulties for supervision, security, safety, or morale.  “Relatives” are defined as spouses, 

domestic partners, children, sisters, brothers, mothers, or fathers, and persons related by marriage 

or domestic partnership.  Present employees who marry or form a domestic partnership, or become 

related by marriage or domestic partnership, will be permitted to continue employment with the 

Town only if they do not work in a direct supervisory relationship with one another, or otherwise 

pose difficulties for supervision, security, safety, or morale.  If employees who marry or form a 

domestic partnership, or become related by marriage or domestic partnership, do work in a direct 

supervisory relationship with one another, the Town will attempt to reassign one of the employees 

to another position for which he or she is qualified, if such a position is available.  If no such 

position is available, then one of the employees will be required to leave the Town’s 

employment.  The decision as to which employee will separate from employment is left to the sole 

discretion of the employees.  In the event that no alternative position is available and neither 

employee voluntarily leaves the Town, the employee with lesser seniority will be terminated. 

 

Section 6.7.  Conflicts of Interest.  Employees are expected to devote their best efforts and 

attention to the full-time performance of their jobs.  They are expected to use good judgment, to 

adhere to high ethical standards, and to avoid situations that create an actual or potential conflict 

between the employee’s personal interest and the interest of the Town.  A conflict of interest exists 

where the employee’s loyalties or actions are divided between the Town’s interest and those of 

another, such as a competitor, supplier, or customer.  Both the fact and the appearance of a conflict 

of interest should be avoided.  Employees unsure as to whether a certain transaction, activity, or 

relationship constitutes a conflict of interest should discuss it with their immediate supervisor or 

the General Manager for clarification.  Any exceptions to this policy must be approved in writing 

by the General Manager. 

 

Where it is not feasible to describe all possible conflicts of interest that could develop, 

some of the more common conflicts, from which employees should refrain, include the following. 
 

A. Unapproved personal gifts or entertainment from competitors, customers, 

suppliers, or potential suppliers; 

 

B. Working for a competitor, supplier, or customer; 

 

C. Engaging in self-employment in competition with the Town; 

 

D. Using proprietary or confidential Town information for personal gain or to 

the Town’s detriment; 

60



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 36 

 

E. Having a direct or indirect financial interest in or relationship with a 

customer or supplier; 

F. Using Town property or labor for personal use; 

 

G. Acquiring any interest in property or assets of any kind for the purpose of 

selling or leasing it to the Town. 
 

H. Committing the Town to give financial or other support to any outside 

activity or organization. 
 

I. Developing a personal relationship with a subordinate employee of the 

Town or with an employee of a competitor, supplier, or customer that might interfere with the 

exercise of impartial judgment in decisions affecting the Town or any employees of the Town. 

 

If an employee or someone with whom an employee has a close relationship (a family 

member or close companion), has a financial or employment relationship with a competitor, 

customer, supplier, or potential supplier, the employee must disclose this fact in writing to the 

General Manager.  Employees should be aware that if they enter into a personal relationship with 

a subordinate employee or with an employee of a competitor, supplier, or customer, a conflict of 

interest may exist which requires full disclosure to the Town. 
 
Part-time employees may engage in outside employment, provided that they disclose such 

employment and get written approval from their immediate supervisor. 

 

Failure to adhere to this policy, including failure to disclose any conflicts or to seek an 

exception, may result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 

 

If there are questions, the employee shall discuss them with their immediate supervisor, 

the General Manager, or both.  Please refer to the Town’s adopted Conflict of Interest Code for 

additional information. 

 

Section 6.8.  Safety.  The Town is committed to providing employees with a safe and 

healthy workplace.   The Town has adopted an Injury Illness Prevention Program refer Board 

Policy No. 021.  https://www.todb.ca.gov/sites/main/files/policy_021_-

_injury_and_illness_prevention_program_2018_v2_-_2018-11_1.pdf 

 

Section 6.9.  Performance Evaluations. The Town supports the utilization of an “Employee 

Performance Review” in order to ensure that employees perform to the highest possible standard.  

Performance evaluations are an effective tool to foster communication between employees and 

their supervisors regarding performance. The Town is committed to a performance review process 

that incorporates regular feedback and candid discussion related to job performance, and that both 

recognizes highly commendable performance as well as addresses any areas where an employee 

may improve performance or is not meeting expected standards.    

 

 Employees should receive annual performance evaluations utilizing the District’s 

“Employee Performance Review” document.  Supervisors are responsible for ensuring that the 

61

https://www.todb.ca.gov/sites/main/files/policy_021_-_injury_and_illness_prevention_program_2018_v2_-_2018-11_1.pdf
https://www.todb.ca.gov/sites/main/files/policy_021_-_injury_and_illness_prevention_program_2018_v2_-_2018-11_1.pdf


 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 37 

 

performance reviews are prepared and discussed with individual employees on an annual basis.  

Employees within their first year of service should receive their initial evaluation no later than six 

months into their employment.   

 

 The Town is committed to ensuring that both employees and their supervisors are focused 

on ensuring that each employee performs to the highest possible standard. The employee 

performance evaluation process provides the opportunity for Town’s employees to receive an 

assessment of their competencies, to identify how to improve performance, and to effectively 

address any areas where performance does not meet acceptable standards.   

 

Section 6.10.  Merit Increases.  The District maintains an adopted salary schedule which 

identifies the minimum and maximum salary for each position.  As part of the annual Employee 

Performance Review, employees whose salary is not yet at the maximum level, may be eligible 

for a merit increase.   Merit increases shall not result in a salary that exceeds the maximum salary 

for the position.  Employees have no right to a merit increase and all merit increases are at the sole 

discretion of the General Manager.   

 

A. An employee who received a performance review that reflects overall 

performance at the “Highly Commendable” and “Proficient and Competent” level may receive a 

5% merit increase. 

 

B. An employee who receives a performance review that reflects overall 

performance at the “Proficient and Competent” and “Needs Improvement” level may receive a 

2.5% merit increase. 

 

C. An employee who receives a performance review that contains an 

“Unacceptable” rating will not receive a merit increase and may be terminated for poor 

performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 38 

 

ARTICLE 7 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

 

Section 7.1.  Purpose of Policy.  It is the intent of the Town to maintain a workplace that 

is free of drugs (including cannabis) and alcohol and to discourage drug and alcohol abuse by its 

employees.  Employees who are under the influence of a drug or alcohol on the job compromise 

the Town’s interests and endanger their own health and safety and the health and safety of others. 

Substance abuse in the workplace can also cause a number of other work-related problems, 

including absenteeism and tardiness, substandard job performance, increased workloads for co-

workers, behavior that disrupts other employees, and inferior quality in products or service.  

The use of prescription drugs and/or over-the-counter drugs may affect an employee’s job 

performance and may seriously impair the employee’s value to the Town. 

Employees should be aware that the legalization of cannabis in California does not impact 

the scope of this policy. Cannabis remains an illegal drug under federal law. For that 
reason, usage and possession of cannabis remains a violation of policy and will be enforced 

to the fullest extent possible. 

 

To further its interest in avoiding accidents, to promote and maintain safe and efficient 

working conditions for its employees, and to protect its business, property, equipment, and 

operations, the Town has established this policy concerning the use of alcohol and drugs. As a 

condition of continued employment with the Town, each employee must abide by this policy.  

 

Section 7.2.  Definitions.  For purposes of this policy:  

 

A. “Illegal drugs or other controlled substances” mean any drug or substance 

that (a) is not legally obtainable; or (b) is legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained; or 

(c) has been legally obtained but is being sold or distributed unlawfully.  

 

B. “Legal drug” means any drug, including any prescription drug or over-the-

counter drug, that has been legally obtained and that is not unlawfully sold or distributed.  

 

C. “Cannabis” means the presence of marijuana or its extracts in any form, 

whether prescribed or not prescribed, and whether deemed legal or illegal. 

 

D. “Abuse of any legal drug” means the use of any legal drug (a) for any 

purpose other than the purpose for which it was prescribed or manufactured; or (b) in a quantity, 

frequency, or manner that is contrary to the instructions or recommendations of the prescribing 

physician or manufacturer.  

 

E. “Reasonable suspicion” includes a suspicion that is based on specific 

personal observations such as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular movement, 

appearance, behavior, speech or breath odor; information provided to management by an 

employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be 

reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances.  

 

63



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 39 

 

F. “Possession” means that an employee has the substance on his or her person 

or otherwise under his or her control.  

 

Section 7.3.  Prohibited Conduct. 

 

A. Scope.  The prohibitions of this section apply whenever the interests of the 

Town may be adversely affected, including any time an employee is:  

 

(1) On Town premises;  

 

(2) Conducting or performing Town business, regardless of location;  

 

(3) Operating or responsible for the operation, custody, or care of Town 

equipment, vehicles or other property; or  

 

(4) Responsible for the safety of others in connection with, or while 

performing, Town-related business.  

 

B. Alcohol.  The following acts are prohibited and will subject an employee to 

termination:  

 

(1) The unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, 

distribution, transportation, or dispensation of alcohol; or  

 

(2) Being under the influence of alcohol; or 

 

(3) Possession of alcohol containers. 

 

C. Cannabis.  The following acts are prohibited and will subject an employee 

to termination: 

 

(1) Whether prescribed or otherwise, the use, cultivation, possession, 

purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, or dispensation of cannabis; or 

 

(2) Being under the influence of cannabis; or 

 

(3) Possession of cannabis paraphernalia. 

 

D. Illegal Drugs.  The following acts are prohibited and will subject an 

employee to termination:  

 

(1) The use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, 

transportation, or dispensation of any illegal drug or other controlled substance; or  

 

(2) Being under the influence of any illegal drug or other controlled 

substance; or 

 

64



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 40 

 

(3) Possession of drug paraphernalia. 

 

E. Legal Drugs.  The following acts are prohibited and will subject an 

employee to termination:  

 

(1) The abuse of any legal drug; or 

 

(2) The purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, 

dispensation, or possession of any legal prescription drug in a manner inconsistent with law; or  

 

(3) Working while impaired by the use of a legal drug whenever such 

impairment might:  

 

(a) Endanger the safety of the employee or some other person;  

 

(b) Pose a risk of significant damage to Town property or 

equipment; or  

 

(c) Substantially interfere with the employee’s job performance 

or the efficient operation of the Town’s business or equipment.  

 

Section 7.4.  Disciplinary Action.  

 

A. Termination for Violation of Policy.  A first violation of this Policy will 

result in immediate discharge whenever the prohibited conduct:  

 

(1) Caused injury to the employee or any other person, or, in the sole 

opinion of management, endangered the safety of the employee or any other person;  

 

(2) Resulted in significant damage to Town property or equipment, or, 

in the sole opinion of management, posed a risk of significant damage;  

 

(3) Involved the sale or manufacture of illegal drugs or other controlled 

substances;  

 

(4) Involved the possession, distribution, or dispensation of illegal 

drugs or other controlled substances or cannabis or alcohol;  

 

(5) Involved an employee who had not completed the introductory 

period or was a casual, seasonal, or temporary employee; or  

 

(6) Involved the failure of an employee to report a criminal conviction, 

as required by Section 7.4.C, below.  

 

B. Discretion Not to Discharge.  In circumstances other than those described 

above in Paragraph A, the Town, in the sole discretion of the General Manager, may choose not 

65



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 41 

 

to discharge an employee for a first violation. The employee may be required to satisfactorily 

complete a Town approved drug or alcohol abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.   

 

C. Effect of Criminal Conviction.  An employee who is convicted under a 

criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace or during any Town-related activity 

or event will be deemed to have violated this Policy.  

 

D. Discipline.  An employee who is not terminated for a first violation of this 

Policy may nevertheless receive another form of discipline for the violation.  

 

E. Effect of Second Violation.  A second violation of this Policy at any time 

will result in immediate discharge.  

 

F. Effect of Discharge on Eligibility for Rehire.  Employees who are 

terminated for a violation of this Policy will not be eligible for rehire by the Town.  

 

Section 7.5.  Management Awareness.  Managers and supervisors should be attentive to 

the performance and conduct of those who work with them and should not permit an employee to 

work in an impaired condition or to otherwise engage in conduct that violates this Policy. When 

management has reasonable suspicion to believe that an employee or employees are working in 

violation of this Policy, prompt action shall be taken.   

 

A. Reasonable Suspicion Testing.    Where there is reasonable suspicion to 

believe that an employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs in violation of this policy, the 

employee may be required to submit to drug and/or alcohol testing.  Reasonable suspicion is more 

than a hunch, but less than probable cause.  Reasonable suspicion can arise from: 

 

(1) Objective symptoms such as poor balance, odor of alcohol and/or 

cannabis; slurred or thick speech; hyper speech; disorganized thought pattern; droopy, watery, red 

eyes; abnormal pupil size; poor dexterity, inability to concentrate or follow directions; mood 

swings and/or outbursts; lethargy or hyper activity; and other related physical indicators. 

 

(2) Possession of alcohol, cannabis, illegal drugs or drug paraphernalia; 

admission of use; citations, arrests or convictions involving alcohol, cannabis, and/or drugs; 

unexplained or significant deterioration in job performance, absenteeism or tardiness; involvement 

in work-related accident or near miss; and/or unexplained or significant changes in behavior.   

 

Section 7.6.  Use of Legal Drugs.  The Town recognizes that employees may, from time to 

time, be prescribed legal drugs that, when taken as prescribed or according to the manufacturer’s 

instructions, may result in impairment. Employees may not work while impaired by the use of 

legal drugs if the impairment might endanger the employee or someone else, pose a risk of 

significant damage to Town property, or substantially interfere with the employee’s job 

performance. If an employee is so impaired by the appropriate use of legal drugs, he or she may 

not report to work. To accommodate the absence, the employee may use accrued sick leave or 

vacation time.  The employee may also contact the General Manager to determine whether or not 

he or she qualifies for an unpaid leave of absence, such as family care or medical leave.  Nothing 

in this Policy is intended to sanction the use of accrued sick leave or vacation time to accommodate 

66



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 42 

 

absences due to the abuse of legal drugs.  Further, nothing in this Policy is intended to diminish 

the Town’s commitment to employ and reasonably accommodate qualified disabled individuals. 

The Town will reasonably accommodate qualified disabled employees who must take legal drugs 

because of their disability.  This section (7.6) pertaining to the Use of Legal Drugs does not apply 

to cannabis, whether prescribed or not. 

 

Section 7.7.  Unregulated or Authorized Conduct.  

 

A. Customary Use of Over-the-Counter Drugs.  Nothing in this Policy is 

intended to prohibit the customary and ordinary purchase, sale, use, possession, or dispensation of 

over-the-counter drugs, so long as that activity does not violate any law or result in an employee 

being impaired by the use of such drugs in violation of this Policy.  

 

B. Authorized Use of Alcohol.  The Town may provide alcohol for 

consumption at certain events, such as social functions. The consumption of alcohol at these events 

does not violate this Policy.  

 

Section 7.8.  Confidentiality.  Disclosures made by employees to the General Manager 

concerning their use of legal drugs will be treated confidentially and will not be revealed to 

managers or supervisors unless there is an important work-related reason to do so in order to 

determine whether it is advisable for the employee to continue working.  Disclosures made by 

employees to the General Manager concerning their participation in any drug or alcohol 

rehabilitation program will be treated confidentially.  

 

Section 7.9.  Drug Testing for Safety-Sensitive Positions.  Employees in safety-sensitive 

positions, as defined by the United States Department of Transportation regulations including 

those employees whose position requires possession of a Class 1 Commercial Drivers license, will 

be tested for drugs and alcohol as part of the Town’s employment screening process and during 

employment in accordance with applicable state and federal law including, but not limited to, The 

Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 and any subsequent amendments thereto.  

Refer Board Policy No. 019, DOT Drug & Alcohol Testing Policy. 

 

Section 7.10.  Pre-Employment Testing.  Following a conditional offer of employment, all 

applicants are required to submit to and pass pre-employment drug testing. 

 

Section 7.11.  Duty to Cooperate.  An employee who fails to cooperate in the 

administration of this policy is subject to termination.  Failure to cooperate includes: 

 

A. Refusing to consent to testing, to submit a sample or to sign required forms; 

 

B. Refusing or obstructing any interview or investigation, including 

untruthfulness or making misleading statements or omissions; 

 

C. Tampering, diluting, switching, and/or falsifying any test sample. 

 

 

 

67



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 43 

 

ARTICLE 8 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

Section 8.1.  Voice-Mail, E-Mails and Technology Policy.  The Town maintains and 

utilizes, as part of its operations, a computer system, voice-mail, e-mail, cellular and smart phone, 

iPads and other methods of technological communication.  These systems are provided to assist 

employees in the conduct of Town business.  Each employee has a responsibility to use the Town’s 

Technology Resources in a manner that increases productivity, enhances the Town’s public image, 

and is respectful of other employees.  Failure to follow the Town’s policies regarding Technology 

Resources may lead to disciplinary measures, up to and including termination of employment.   

 

Section 8.2.  Technology Resources Definition.  Technology Resources consist of all 

electronic devices, software, and means of electronic communication including any of the 

following: personal computers and workstations; laptop computers; mini and mainframe 

computers; computer hardware such as disk drives and tape drives; peripheral equipment such as 

printers, modems, fax machines, and copiers; computer software applications and associated files 

and data, including software that grants access to external services, such as the Internet; electronic 

mail; telephones; cellular and smart phones; iPads; personal organizers and other handheld 

devices; pagers; voicemail systems; and instant messaging systems.   

 

Section 8.3.  Authorization.  Access to the Town’s Technology Resources is within the sole 

discretion of the Town.  Generally, employees are given authorized access to the Town’s various 

technologies based on their job functions.  Only authorized employees whose job performance will 

benefit from the use of the Town’s Technology Resources are permitted to access and use the 

necessary technology to which they’ve been assigned.  Additionally, employees must successfully 

complete any Town-required training before they are authorized to access and use the Town’s 

Technology Resources.   

 

Section 8.4.  Use.  The Town’s Technology Resources are to be used by employees only 

for the purpose of conducting Town business and personal use of such Resources is discouraged.  

Employees may, however, use the Town’s Technology Resources for the following incidental 

personal uses as long as such use does not interfere with the employee’s duties, is not done for 

pecuniary gain, does not conflict with the Town’s business, and does not violate any Town policy:  

 

(1) To use the telephone system for brief and necessary personal calls;  

 

(2) To send and receive necessary and occasional personal 

communications;  

 

(3) To prepare and store incidental personal data (such as personal 

calendars, personal address lists, and similar incidental personal data) in a reasonable manner; and  

 

(4) To access the Internet for brief personal searches and inquiries 

during meal times or other breaks, or outside of work hours, provided that employees adhere to all 

other usage policies.   

 

68



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 44 

 

The Town assumes no liability for loss, damage, destruction, alteration, receipt, 

transmission, disclosure, or misuse of any personal data or communications transmitted over or 

stored on the Town’s Technology Resources.  The Town accepts no responsibility or liability for 

the loss or non-delivery of any personal electronic mail or voicemail communications or any 

personal data stored on any Town property.  The Town strongly discourages employees from 

storing any personal data on any of the Town’s Technology Resources.  Personal information and 

communications transmitted or stored on any of the Town’s Technology Resources cannot be 

considered private and may be disclosed to management and subject to disclosure under the Public 

Records Act. 

 

Section 8.5.  Improper Use.   

 

A. Prohibition Against Harassing, Discriminatory and Defamatory Use.  The 

Town is aware that employees use electronic mail for correspondence that is less formal than 

written memoranda.  Employees must take care, however, not to let informality degenerate into 

improper use.  As set forth more fully in the Town’s “Policy Against Harassment,” the Town does 

not tolerate discrimination or harassment based on gender, pregnancy, childbirth (or related 

medical conditions), race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, physical disability, mental 

disability, medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, family care or medical leave status, 

veteran status, or any other status protected by state and federal laws.  Under no circumstances 

shall employees use the Town’s Technology Resources to transmit, receive, or store any 

information that is discriminatory, harassing, defamatory, obscene, indecent, threatening, or that 

otherwise could adversely affect any individual, group, or entity (e.g., sexually explicit or racial 

messages, jokes, or cartoons).   

 

B. Prohibition Against Violating Copyright Laws.  Employees shall not use the 

Town’s Technology Resources to copy, retrieve, forward, or send copyrighted materials unless the 

employee has the author’s permission or is accessing a single copy only for the employee’s 

reference.   

 

C. Other Prohibited Uses.  Employees shall not use the Town’s Technology 

Resources for any illegal purpose, violation of any Town policy, in a manner contrary to the best 

interests of the Town, in any way that discloses confidential or proprietary information of the Town 

or third parties, or for personal or pecuniary gain.  Employees shall not use the Town’s Technology 

Resources without authorization and permission. 

 

Section 8.6.  Town Access to Technology Resources.  All messages sent and received, 

including personal messages, and all data and information stored on the Town’s Technology 

Resources (including on its electronic mail system, voicemail system, or computer systems) are 

Town property regardless of the content.  As such, the Town reserves the right to access all of its 

Technology Resources including its computers, voicemail, and electronic mail systems, at any 

time, in its sole discretion.  No employee, other than the President of the Board of Directors, has 

authority to waive, vary or amend the Town’s right to access its Technology Resources.   

 

A. No Reasonable Expectation of Privacy.  On occasion, the Town may need 

to access its Technology Resources including computer files, electronic mail messages, and 

voicemail messages.  Employees should understand, therefore, that they have no right of privacy 

69



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 45 

 

with respect to any messages or information created, collected, or maintained on the Town’s 

Technology Resources, including personal information or messages.  The Town may, at its 

discretion, inspect all files or messages on its Technology Resources at any time for any reason.  

The Town may also monitor its Technology Resources at any time in order to determine 

compliance with its policies, for purposes of legal proceedings, to investigate misconduct, to locate 

information, or for any other business purpose.   

 

B. Passwords.  Certain of the Town’s Technology Resources can be accessed 

only by entering a password.  Passwords are intended to prevent unauthorized access to 

information.  Passwords do not confer any right of privacy upon any employee of the Town.  Thus, 

even though employees may maintain passwords for accessing Technology Resources, employees 

must not expect that any information maintained on Technology Resources, including electronic 

mail and voicemail messages, are private.  Employees are expected to maintain their passwords as 

confidential.  Employees must not share passwords and must not access coworkers’ systems 

without express authorization.   

 

C. Data Collection.  The best way for employees to ensure the privacy of 

personal information is not to store or transmit it on the Town’s Technology Resources.  So that 

employees understand the extent to which information is collected and stored, examples of 

information currently maintained by the Town are provided below.  The Town may, however, in 

its sole discretion, and at any time, alter the amount and type of information that it retains.   

 

(1) Telephone Use and Voicemail:  Records are kept of all calls made 

from and to a given telephone extension.  Although voicemail is password-protected, an authorized 

administrator can listen to voicemail messages and also reset the password.   

 

(2) Electronic Mail:  Electronic mail is backed up and archived.  

Although electronic mail is password-protected, an authorized administrator can read electronic 

mail and also reset the password.   

 

(3) Desktop Facsimile Use:  Copies of all facsimile transmissions are 

maintained in the facsimile server.   

 

(4) Document Use:  Each document stored on Town computers has a 

history that shows which users have accessed the document for any purpose. 

   

(5) Internet Use:  Internet sites visited, the number of times visited, and 

the total time connected to each site are recorded and periodically monitored.   

 

D. Deleted Information.  Deleting or erasing information, documents, or 

messages maintained on the Town’s Technology Resources is, in most cases, ineffective.  All 

employees should understand that any information kept on the Town’s Technology Resources may 

be electronically recalled or recreated regardless of whether it may have been “deleted” or “erased” 

by an employee.  Because the Town periodically backs up all files and messages, and because of 

the way in which computers reuse file storage space, files and messages may exist that are thought 

to have been deleted or erased.  Therefore, employees who delete or erase information or messages 

should not assume that such information or messages are confidential or ever were confidential.  

70



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 46 

 

If a legal dispute arises, or may arise in the future, it may be unlawful to attempt to delete or erase 

certain information.  Employees shall fully comply with Town policy regarding retention or 

destruction of information.   

 

Section 8.7.  The Internet and On-Line Services.  The Town provides authorized 

employees access to online services such as the Internet.  The Town expects that employees will 

use these services in a responsible way and for business-related purposes only.  Under no 

circumstances are employees permitted to use the Town’s Technology Resources to access, 

download, or contribute to Internet sites that contain inappropriate content such as that which is 

discriminatory, harassing, defamatory, obscene, indecent, threatening, or that otherwise could 

adversely affect any individual, group, or entity.   

 

Additionally, employees may not use the Town’s Technology Resources to post, comment, 

send, or otherwise upload any information to any Web sites or other online groups, including web 

logs (i.e., “blogs”), social networking Web sites, newsgroups, discussion groups, or non-Town 

email groups.  These actions will likely generate junk electronic mail and may expose the Town 

to liability or unwanted attention because of comments or other contributions that employees may 

make.  The Town strongly encourages employees who wish to access the Internet for non-work-

related activities to obtain their own personal Internet access accounts that are unaffiliated with 

the Town, and to use such accounts at home on their own personal computer without making any 

reference to the Town.   

 

Authorized employees may use Town social media sites to promote Town services or Town 

sponsored events.  Content must be approved by a supervisor. 

 

Section 8.8.  Monitoring.  The Town monitors both the amount of time spent using online 

services and the sites visited by individual employees.  The Town reserves the right to limit such 

access by any means available to it, including revoking access altogether.  The Town, through 

technological tools, may also prohibit or limit access to certain Web sites considered inappropriate 

by the Town or its technology provider. 

 

Section 8.9.  Confidential Information.  The Town is very sensitive to the issue of 

protection of trade secrets and other confidential and proprietary information of both the Town 

and third parties (“Confidential Information”).  Therefore, employees are expected to use good 

judgment and to adhere to the highest ethical standards when using or transmitting Confidential 

Information on the Town’s Technology Resources.   

 

Confidential Information should not be accessed through the Town’s Technology 

Resources in the presence of unauthorized individuals.  Similarly, Confidential Information should 

not be left visible or unattended.  Moreover, any Confidential Information transmitted via 

Technology Resources should be marked with the following confidentiality legend: “This message 

contains confidential information.  Unless you are the addressee (or authorized to receive for the 

addressee), you may not copy, use, or distribute this information.  If you have received this 

message in error, please advise [employee’s name] immediately at [employee’s telephone number] 

or return it promptly by mail.”  

 

71



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 47 

 

Employees should adhere to Town’s security policy with regard to Confidential 

Information and take all appropriate measures to safeguard the confidentiality and security of such 

information.  Employees should avoid sending Confidential Information via the Internet, except 

when absolutely necessary.  Employees should also verify electronic mail addresses before 

transmitting any messages containing Confidential Information.   

 

Section 8.10.  Software Use / License Restrictions.  All software in use on the Town’s 

Technology Resources is officially licensed software.  No software is to be installed or used that 

has not been duly paid for and licensed appropriately for the use to which it is being put.  No 

employee may load any software on the Town’s computers, by any means of transmission, unless 

authorized in writing in advance by the General Manager or the President of the Board of Directors, 

and thoroughly scanned for viruses or other malware prior to installation.   

 

Section 8.11.  Software for Home Use.  Employees are prohibited from transferring or 

copying any software from a Town Technology Resource to another computer or other device, 

unless employees have received written authorization from the General Manager or the President 

of the Board of Directors.   

 

Section 8.12.  Security.  The Town has installed a variety of programs and devices to 

ensure the safety and security of the Town’s Technology Resources.  Any employee found 

tampering with or disabling any of the Town’s security devices will be subject to discipline up to 

and including termination.  Moreover, the Town reserves the right to advise appropriate legal 

authorities of any violation of law by an employee that results in the misappropriation, theft, or 

unlawful use of Town’s property or proprietary information.  To maintain the effectiveness of the 

Town’s security measures, employees should use only secure networks established by the Town 

to access or use Confidential Information.  Such information may not be downloaded, stored, or 

copied on any non-Town equipment or media (including personally owned computer, handheld 

devices, external memory devices, or disks) without prior written approval of the General 

Manager.  If Confidential Information is downloaded, stored, or copied on non-Town equipment 

or media, employee must take all appropriate measures to safeguard against loss, theft, damage, or 

breach of such equipment or media.  If Confidential Information is downloaded, stored, or copied 

on non-Town equipment or media, employees must permanently delete such information prior to 

selling or otherwise transferring out of their own possession or control such equipment or media.  

If Confidential Information is downloaded, stored, or copied on non-Town equipment or media 

and employee resigns, is terminated, or is requested to do so by management, employees must 

delete all Confidential Information they received, including any and all copies thereof.  Similarly, 

employees may not send Confidential Information to their personal e-mail accounts, even for 

work-related purposes, without prior written approval of the General Manager or President of the 

Board of Directors.   

 

Any loss or suspected loss of Confidential Information, or any suspicious activity such as 

external hacking attempts or unusual internal activity, should be reported immediately to Town 

management. 

 

Section 8.13.  Remote Access to Technology Resources.  The Town may, at its sole 

discretion, provide certain employees with remote access systems such as a laptop, iPad, smart 

phone, or other personal organizer to allow such employees to handle the tasks associated with 

72



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 48 

 

their jobs while working away from the office.  Employees must take care to ensure the security 

of all Town-provided equipment.  Employees must not share network passwords or other PINs 

with anyone.  As soon as an employee believes Town-provided equipment is lost or that the 

security and confidentiality of the data on that equipment has been compromised, he or she must 

notify the General Manager.  If Town-provided equipment is lost, or if it is damaged as a result of 

carelessness, employees may be responsible for replacement fees.  The Town-provided remote 

access system should only be used for Town-related business.  The Town may decide that it is no 

longer necessary for certain employees to possess a remote access system and their ability to use 

such systems may be discontinued, in which case such employees are expected to return any Town-

issued remote access systems.   

 

The Town does not expect or require employees to work on tasks (including e-mail, work 

product, etc.) during meal periods or after scheduled working times.  Any and all use of remote 

access systems shall be made in compliance with Town’s “Hours of Work, Overtime, And Pay 

Day Policy.”  Nonexempt Employees are strictly prohibited from working on any tasks outside of 

scheduled working hours unless with the express written authorization of the General Manager. 

 

Use of public or home networks, such as unencrypted Wi-Fi networks, can be a threat to 

the security and reliability of the Town’s Technology Resources.  Accordingly, employees must 

only access Town Technology Resources via means that are specifically approved by the Town.   

 

Section 8.14.  Audits.  The Town may perform auditing activity or monitoring to determine 

compliance with these policies.  Audits of software and data stored on the Town’s Technology 

Resources may be conducted without warning at any time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 49 

 

ARTICLE 9 

VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE  

 

Section 9.1.  Statement of Policy.  The Town recognizes that workplace violence is a 

concern among employers and employees across the country.  The Town is committed to providing 

a safe, violence-free workplace.  In this regard, the Town strictly prohibits employees, consultants, 

customers, visitors, or anyone else on Town premises or engaging in a Town-related activity from 

behaving in a violent or threatening manner.  Moreover, the Town seeks to prevent workplace 

violence before it begins and reserves the right to address certain behaviors, even in the absence 

of violent behavior.   

 

The Town believes that prevention of workplace violence begins with recognition and 

awareness of potential early warning signs and has established procedures for responding to any 

situation that presents the possibility of violence.   

 

Section 9.2.  Workplace Violence Defined.  Workplace violence includes, but is not 

limited to, the following:  

 

(1) Threats of any kind;  

 

(2) Threatening, physically aggressive, or violent behavior, such as 

intimidation of or attempts to instill fear in others;  

 

(3) Other behavior that suggests a propensity towards violence, which 

can include belligerent speech, excessive arguing or swearing, sabotage, or threats of sabotage of 

Town property, or a demonstrated pattern of refusal to follow Town policies and procedures;  

 

(4) Defacing Town property or causing physical damage to the 

facilities; or  

 

(5) With the exception of security personnel, bringing weapons or 

firearms of any kind on Town premises, in Town parking lots, or while conducting Town business.   

 

Section 9.3.  Reporting.  If any employee observes or becomes aware of any of the above-

listed actions or behavior by an employee, customer, consultant, visitor, or anyone else, he or she 

should notify a supervisor or the General Manager immediately.   

 

Further, employees should notify the General Manager if any restraining order is in effect, 

or if a potentially violent non-work related situation exists that could result in violence in the 

workplace.   

 

Section 9.4.  Investigation.  All reports of workplace violence will be taken seriously and 

will be investigated promptly and thoroughly.  In appropriate circumstances, the Town will inform 

the reporting individual of the results of the investigation.  To the extent possible, the Town will 

maintain the confidentiality of the reporting employee and of the investigation.  The Town may, 

however, need to disclose results in appropriate circumstances, for example, in order to protect 

74



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 50 

 

individual safety.  The Town will not tolerate retaliation against any employee who reports 

workplace violence.   

 

Section 9.5.  Corrective Action and Discipline.  If the Town determines that workplace 

violence has occurred, the Town will take appropriate corrective action and will impose discipline 

on offending employees.  The appropriate discipline will depend on the particular facts and 

circumstances and may include termination.  If the violent behavior is that of a non-employee, the 

Town will take appropriate corrective action in an attempt to ensure that such behavior is not 

repeated.   

 

Under certain circumstances, the Town may forego disciplinary action on the condition 

that the employee takes a medical leave of absence.  In addition, the Town may request that the 

employee participate in counseling, either voluntarily or as a condition of continued employment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 51 

 

ARTICLE 10 

MOBILE DEVICE POLICY  

 

Section 10.1.  Mobile Device Policy.  The Town prohibits the use of all handheld mobile 

devices including telephone, data, personal organizer, or other devices for work purposes while 

operating a motor vehicle or for personal purposes while operating a motor vehicle during work 

hours or on Town business.  Moreover, all use of Town-issued mobile devices, or personally 

purchased mobile devices used for work-related purposes, must be made in accordance with Town 

policy.   

 

Employees may use hands-free mobile devices while driving when safe to do so.  Special 

care should be taken in situations where there is heavy traffic, inclement weather, or the employee 

is driving in an unfamiliar area.  Employees must adhere to all federal, state, and local rules and 

regulations regarding the use of mobile devices while driving.   

 

Under no circumstances are employees allowed to use text devices to type or review text 

messages for work purposes while operating a motor vehicle or for personal purposes while 

operating a motor vehicle during work hours or on Town business. 

 

 In the interest of the safety of our employees and other drivers and to comply with 

California law, if your job requires that you keep your cell phone turned on while you are driving, 

you must use a hands-free device. Unless using a hands-free device, under no circumstances should 

employees place phone calls while operating a motor vehicle while driving on Town business 

and/or Town time. Any citations for cell phone violations shall be the employee’s responsibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 52 

 

ARTICLE 11 

VEHICLE USAGE POLICY 

 

Section 11.1.  Vehicle Usage Policy.  The Town maintains a Vehicle Usage Policy.  While 

the policy is considered part of this Manual, it is set forth in a separate document.  Refer Board 

Policy 017 – Vehicle Use Policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 53 

 

ARTICLE 12 

COMMUNITY CENTER POOL STAFF USE POLICY 

 

Section 12.1.    Community Center Pool Staff Use Policy. As a benefit of employment 

by the Town, Regular Full-Time Employees and their immediate families may receive admission 

free use of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Center Swimming Pool (“Pool”) during regular 

Pool operation hours. Immediate family of Regular Full Time Employees includes spouse, 

registered domestic partner, child, stepchild, or eligible foster child who is a dependent of the 

Employee. Regular Full-Time Employees and their immediate families shall be subject to all rules 

and regulations associated with the Pool. Admission free use does not confer any right or privilege 

related to use of the Pool to the Full-Time Employee or his/her immediate family. All admission 

free use of the Pool shall occur during regular Pool hours on weekdays and weekends when the 

Pool is open to the public.  

 

 Admission free use of the Pool may be revoked at any time for violation of this section or 

violation of the rules and regulations associated with the Pool.  

 

78



 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

 Page 54 

 

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

PLEASE READ THIS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND FILL OUT AND RETURN THIS 

DOCUMENT TO YOUR SUPERVISOR.   

 

Employee Name:  __________________________________________________ 
 

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Town’s Employee Manual (“Manual”).   

I acknowledge that I have had the opportunity to meet with a supervisor to answer my questions 

and clarify any areas I do not understand in the Manual.    I understand and acknowledge that I am 

responsible for reading the Manual and for knowing and complying with the policies and 

procedures set forth in the Manual during my employment with the Town.   
 

I further understand, however, that the information contained in the Manual is not intended 

to create any contractual rights or obligations, express or implied, and shall not be construed to 

create any type of right to a “fair procedure” prior to termination or other disciplinary action.  I 

also understand that, except for the Town’s at-will employment policy, the Town may amend, 

interpret, modify, or withdraw any of the provisions of the Manual at any time in its sole discretion, 

with or without notice.  Furthermore, I understand that, because the Town cannot anticipate every 

issue that may arise during my employment, if I have any questions regarding any of the Town’s 

policies, guidelines or procedures, I should consult my supervisor or the General Manager.   
 

I understand and agree that my relationship with the Town is “at-will,” which means that 

my employment is for no definite period and may be terminated by me or by the Town at any time 

and for any reason, with or without cause or advance notice.  I also understand that the Town may 

demote or discipline me or otherwise alter the terms of my employment at any time at its sole 

discretion, with or without cause or advance notice.   
 

I understand and agree that the terms of this Acknowledgment may not be modified or 

superseded except by a written agreement approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, 

that no other employee or representative of the Town has the authority to enter into any such 

agreement, and that any agreement to employ me for any specified period of time or that is 

otherwise inconsistent with the terms of this Acknowledgment will be unenforceable unless in 

writing and signed by me and the President of the Board of Directors of the Town.  I further 

understand and agree that if the terms of this Acknowledgment are inconsistent with any policy, 

guideline or practice of the Town now or in the future, the terms of this Acknowledgment shall 

control.   
 

Finally, I understand and agree that this Acknowledgment contains a full and complete 

statement of the agreements and understandings that it recites, that no one has made any promises 

or commitments to me contrary to the foregoing, and that this Acknowledgment supersedes all 

previous agreements, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating to the subjects covered 

in this Acknowledgment.   
 

I have carefully read this Acknowledgement of Receipt.  

Date:          Employee’s Signature:       

       

         Employee’s Name        

79



 

 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
 ESTABLISHING AN UPDATED AND RESTATED 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL MANUAL 
 

 
 WHEREAS, On August 20, 2003 the Board of Directors approved and adopted the Employee 
Personnel Manual for the employees of the Town of Discovery Bay (TODB); and 
 
 WHEREAS, On August 18, 2004 the Manual was amended by the Board of Directors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On September 4, 2013 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 
2013-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On September 19, 2013 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 
2013-20; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On February 5, 2014 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 2014-
04; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On June 3, 2015 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 2015-08; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, On February 3, 2016 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 2016-
03; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On July 5, 2017 the Manual was amended and approved by the Board of Directors; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, On December 5, 2018 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 
2018-4; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On May 15, 2019 the Manual was amended and approved by Resolution No. 2019-
03; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed employee manual, which is attached and made a part of this Resolution, 
complies with current TODB policies and federal and state employment laws and regulations that are in 
place at the time this Resolution was approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Employee Personnel Manual is hereby adopted and is attached and made a part 
  of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2. That this action is effective immediately. 
 
SECTION 3.  The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-21 

 

 

 

80



 

 

2 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 7th DAY OF OCTOBER 2020. 

 
 

      _________________________ 
      Bill Pease 
      Board President 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting, held on October 7, 2020 by 
the following vote of the Board: 

  
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

Michael R. Davies 
Board Secretary 

81


	100720 Regular BOD Full Packet
	100220 Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet
	100720 Regular Agenda
	C-1 091620 Regular BOD Minutes DRAFT
	C-2 092320 Special BOD Minutes DRAFT

	100120 Special BOD Minutes DRAFT
	100720 Regular BOD Full Packet
	C-4 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices

	C-4-1 RFA 100720
	100720 Regular BOD Full Packet
	D-1 Sayre Excellence Award
	G-1 Staff Report on Amendment to Personnel Manual
	Divider sheet 11
	G-1-1 Policy 005 - Draft Personnel Manual Revisions Sections Only 100720
	Divider sheet 22
	G-1-2 Policy 005 - Draft Personnel Manual Revisions Full Document 100720
	G-1-3 Resolution No. 2020-21 Updated & Restated Personnel Manual




